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Report of the board of directors ex article 119 Company Code

respect to the financial year ended on 31 December 2014.

Pursuant to article 119 of the Company Code, the board of directors reports on the operations of %y%Group with

The information provided in this report is regulated information in accordance with artigle 36 of the 'Royal Decree of 14
November 2007.

A free copy of the annual report of the board of directors on the statutory accox%;%rste? NV in accordance with article
offige.

96 of the Belgian Company Code can be requested at the Company’s registe

1. Comments to the financial statements

Nyrstar's consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ed 31 December 2014 comprise Nyrstar NV (the

«

“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together referred to a r the “Group” and individually as “Group entities”) and the

Group’s interest in associates and jointly controlled

The consolidated financial statements of were prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting

Standards as adopted by the European e include International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the

Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the IFRS Interpretations

related interpretations issued by the

Committee (IFRIC), effective at ¢ ol

statements have been prepar g/concern basis.
r

The consolidated financial(st e presented in Euros which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

All financial informati been gounded to the nearest hundred thousand Euro.
Please refer to % ages in the 2014 annual report for the consolidated financial statements.
activit

1.1 Ovewvl ies and finance overview

Th Pr@cessing segment produced approximately 1,097,000 tonnes of zinc metal in 2014, at the top end of full year
gu ! pared to 2013 (1,088,000 tonnes), production in 2014 increased by 1%.

In 2014, Nyrstar's own mines produced 278,000 tonnes of zinc in concentrate, an increase of 3% compared to 2013. Zinc in
concentrate production fell short of guidance and was impacted by operational challenges. Gold production of 52,100 troy
ounces was significantly down (31%) compared to 2013 and below guidance with no targeted campaigning of gold in H2
2014 in response to a depressed gold price.

Supported by improved macroeconomic conditions, the Company delivered a result from operational activities before
exceptional items of EUR 23.8 million in 2014, compared to a negative 45.6 million in 2013, an improvement of 152% year-
on-year. The Group generated revenue for 2014 amounting to EUR 2,798.8 million, an insignificant decrease of 1%
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compared to 2013, and recorded a net loss after tax of EUR 89.8 million in 2014 (2013: net loss after tax of EUR 195.4
million).

In H2 2014, Nyrstar completed its Comprehensive Strategic Financing, which consisted of EUR 350 million of 8.5% rated
senior unsecured notes due 2019, a EUR 251.6 million rights offering, repurchase of approximately two thirds of the
outstanding EUR 220 million 5.5% fixed rate bonds due in April 2015 and EUR 100 million of the outstanding EUR 515
million 5.375% fixed rate bonds due in May 2016.

Prevent Harm is a core value of Nyrstar and we are committed to maintaining safe operations and to proactively managing
ir lives or
.0 in
2014 and our recordable injury frequency rate (RIR) increased from 11.4 in 2013 to 13.0 in 2014, both indicat@rs, reflecting a
challenging year in our Mining segment. (LTR and RIR are 12 month rolling averages of the number of | e injuries and

risks including with respect to our people and the environment. We are pleased to report that no employees lost t

were seriously injured while working for Nyrstar in 2014. Our lost time injury frequency rate (LTIR) remained fi

recordable injuries (respectively) per million hours worked, and include all employees and contractor pervised by
Nyrstar at all operations).

1.2 Non-financial key-performance indicators

Production

Financial year Fin@anc
2014 013

Mining production

Zinc in concentrate (‘000 tonnes)* 27 271
Gold in concentrate (‘000 troy ounces) 5 75.2
06
2

Silver in concentrate (‘000 troy ounces) 5,1 4,746
Lead in concentrate (‘000 tonnes) . 14.2
Copper in concentrate (‘000 tonnes) 12.9
Smelting production

Zinc metal (‘000 tonnes) ,097 1,088
Lead metal (‘000 tonnes) 178 179
Sulphuric acid (‘000 tonnes, gross) 1,438 1,389
Silver (million troy ounces) 134 17.9
Gold (‘000 troy ounces) 33 66

*Own mines production

Nyrstar's own mines produced , tonnes of zinc in concentrate, an increase of 3% compared to 2013. Zinc in

uidance, lead in concentrate production exceeded the upper end of guidance, copper in
concentrate produgti ightly behind guidance and silver production was in line with guidance and higher (8%) than in

2013. Gold pro ,100 troy ounces was significantly down (31%) compared to 2013 and below guidance with the

decision in pend gold pillar extraction at El Toqui in response to a depressed gold price and unstable ground
conditions?
T talg Pracessing segment produced approximately 1,097,000 tonnes of zinc metal in 2014, at the top end of the stated

guidance of approximately 1.0 to 1.1 million tonnes.
Markets

Nyrstar’'s earnings and cash flows are influenced by movements in exchange rates of several currencies, particularly the
U.S. Dollar, the Euro, the Australian Dollar and the Swiss Franc. Nyrstar's reporting currency is the Euro. Zinc, lead and
other metals are sold throughout the world principally in U.S. Dollars, while the costs of Nyrstar are primarily in Euros,
Australian Dollars and Swiss Francs.
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The average zinc price increased by 13% in 2014 to USD 2,164 per tonne compared to USD 1,909/t in 2013, while the
average copper, silver and gold price declined by 6%, 20% and 10% respectively. Nyrstar's earnings also remain materially
sensitive to changes in the zinc treatment charge. The 2014 zinc benchmark treatment charge settled above the 2013 terms,
resulting in a benchmark TC of USD 223 per dry metric tonne (dmt) in 2014, a USD 11 increase on 2013, which had a
positive impact on group EBITDA.

Strength in the US economy towards the end of 2014 and signs of weakening in Europe led to expectations that the US
Federal Reserve would increase interest rates in 2015 whilst the European Central Bank would implement quantitative
easing. Both of these factors pressurised currencies globally relative to the US Dollar. In particular, the impaét of these
economic divergences caused the Euro to weaken relative to the US Dollar by nearly 10% during H2 2014. \

Safety, health and environment

While we aspire to operate with zero harm, our main priority is to prevent loss of life and serigus injuries. part of this

focus, in 2013 we launched the Nyrstar Life Saving Rules which prescribe non-negotiable requi ts in

key risks relevant to our operations. In 2014, this initiative was further expanded and 0 a comprehensive

critical Incident prevention program referred to as The Zero Program. The program,efgomp a series of activities

including identification and review of critical incident scenarios, first line supervi training, audit and self-

The Metals Processing segment closed the year with the lowest LTIR and sthce Nyrstar was founded at 2.7 and 7.1

respectively. In terms of severity, the Lost Time Injury Severity rate ) deereased by 49% to 83 in 2014, compared to

160 in 2013 and by 44% compared to 148 in 2012.

In the mining segment, no permanent disabling injuries een repPrted, however LTIR and RIR both increased in 2014,

as consequence of a much better reporting disciplin dikeeping across the segment. For the second consecutive
year Myra Falls won the Ryan Award which recogni ety performance across British Columbia (BC) in 2013. They

also won the 2014 Annual Rescue Competitiopga

No environmental events with material i % 3

reviews was completed across all s

1.3 Operating resu @ anei osition and cash flows

through the reviews are in the g addressed. At Port Pirie, strengthened operational and environmental

controls contributed to signifi d emission results for lead in air. The average lead in air results achieved for

2014 equaled the best res

In 2014 the gro

Q9

efited from higher zinc prices, however this was offset in part by lower precious metals prices.

it EUR 1,293 million, up 3% year-on-year, driven principally by the Metals Processing segment,

which bene 0 er zinc treatment charge and premium income and close to record production volumes.. Both

segments

Camp 14, employee benefits expense increased by 5% to EUR 410.9 million, energy expenses decreased by 16%
to EUR 277.6 million, including benefit from rebates received from electricity grid operator in the Netherlands and Belgium
as compensation for being incorrectly overcharged in previous periods and Emissions Trading Scheme rebates in Belgium
relating to 2013.

The Group recorded a net financial expense of EUR 107.6 million in 2014, up 9% on prior year driven by higher inventory
funding requirements.

Nyrstar recognised an income tax benefit for 2014 of EUR 8 million representing an effective tax rate of 8.3%, compared to
an income tax expense of EUR (11) million in 2013 representing an effective tax rate of (6.0)%. The tax rate is impacted by
the change of tax rates in Chile, Mexico and Peru, non-deductible amounts and losses incurred by the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2014 for which no tax benefit has been recognised.
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The Group recorded a net loss after tax of EUR 89.8 million for the year 2014, compared to a net loss of EUR 195.4 million
in 2013, representing an improvement of 54% year-on-year driven by higher result from operating activities, however
negatively impacted by higher depreciation charges, impairment losses and increase in finance expense.

Capital expenditure was approximately EUR 294 million in 2014, representing an increase of 47% from 2013 (EUR 200
million) as a result of commencing the Port Pirie Redevelopment. Sustaining capital expenditure continues to be tightly
managed across the segments as growth capex spend starts to ramp-up.

1.4 Liquidity position and capital resources

2013 and cash flow from changes in working capital and other balance sheet movements in 2014 of EUR
down 61% compared to EUR 175 million in 2013, resulting in total cash flow from operating activities for t
million compared to EUR 299 million for 2013.

Net debt of EUR 438 million at the end of 2014 was a 35% reduction from EUR 670 million at the,end o 3, assisted by

cash inflows from the Comprehensive Strategic Financing, which consisted of EUR 3 i f 8.5% rated senior
unsecured notes due 2019, a EUR 251.6 million rights offering, repurchase of approximgtely hirds of the outstanding
EUR 220 million 5.5% fixed rate bonds due in April 2015 and EUR 100 million of | ding EUR 515 million 5.375%

fixed rate bonds due in May 2016.

As at 31 December 2014 Nyrstar's EUR 400 million revolving structured c@mmadity trade finance facility remained fully
undrawn. The Group had cash on hand of EUR 499 million and ample c it rawn liquidity headroom at the end of
the year.

2. Internal Control and Enterprise Risk Management

Internal Control and Risk Management %
General Q

(Re assessment of the effectiveness of the Risk Management Framework
tive approach to risk management. The board of directors is responsible for

The Nyrstar board of directors is responsib
and internal controls. The Group takes ro

ensuring that nature and extent of ri entified on a timely basis with alignment to the Group’s strategic objectives and

activities.

The audit committee play; rol monitoring the effectiveness of the Risk Management Framework and is an
important medium for_bringi i to the board’s attention. If a critical risk or issue is identified by the board or
management, it ma progigte for all directors to be a part of the relevant risk management process, and as such the

The Nyrst
Group.s%isks ‘are” being adequately managed. The Risk Management Framework is designed to achieving the Group’s

Management Framework requires regular evaluation of the effectiveness of internal controls to ensure the

objecti rstar acknowledges that risk is not just about losses and harm. Risk can have positive consequence too.
Effecti sk management enables Nyrstar to achieve an appropriate balance between realising opportunities while
minimising adverse impacts.

This section gives an overview of the main features of the Company’s internal control and risk management systems, in
accordance with the Belgian Corporate Governance Code and the Belgian Companies Code.

Components of the Risk Management Framework

The Risk Management Framework is integrated in the management process and focuses on the following key principles.
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The key elements of Risk Management Framework are:
1 Understanding the external and internal environment

Understanding the internal and external business environment and the effect this has on our business strategy and plans.
This informs Nyrstar’s overall tolerance to risk.

2 Consistent methods for risk identification and analysis of risks, existing controls and control effectiveness

Implementing systems and processes for the consistent identification and analysis of risks, existing contrgls ntrol
effectiveness. Evaluating whether the level of risk being accepted is consistent with levels of risk acceptal t dit
Committee.

3 Risk treatment

Using innovative and creative thinking in responding to risks and taking action where jigi d that the Group is
being exposed to unacceptable levels of risk.

4 Stakeholder engagement and Communication

Involving all Nyrstar employees and relevant stakeholders in managing ri a unicating identified key risks and
controls.

5 Monitoring and review
Regularly monitoring and reviewing our risk management framewotk, our risks and control effectiveness.

The guideline for the Risk Management Framework n to comply with ISO 31000; 2009. Compliance with the
guideline is mandatory within Nyrstar.

Critical internal controls
The following is a summary of Nyrstar’s Gitical in | controls:
Organisational design

There is a sound organiz I"'Struc with clear procedures, delegation and accountabilities for both the business side

and the support and ¢ C , such as human resources, legal, finance, internal audit, etc.

The organizatio onitored on an ongoing basis, e.g. through benchmarking the organizational structure with
petitors. Responsibilities are delegated to business units, by business plans and accompanying

budgets nagement and the board of directors within set authorization levels.

Poligigs‘and precedures

The Group) has established internal policies and procedures to manage various risks across the Group. These policies and
procedures are available on the Nyrstar intranet-site, and distributed for application across the whole Group. Every policy
has an owner, who periodically reviews and updates if necessary.

Ethics

The board of directors has approved a Corporate Governance Charter and a Code of Business Conduct, including a
framework for ethical decision making. All employees must perform their daily activities and their business objectives
according to the strictest ethical standards and principles. The Code of Business Conduct is available on www.nyrstar.com
and sets out principles how to conduct business and behave in respect of:
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* Our People

* Our Communities and Environment

» Our Customers and Suppliers

* Our Competitors

* Our Shareholders

* Our Assets

The board of directors regularly monitors compliance with applicable policies and procedures of the Nyrstar Gr\

Whistleblowing %

Nyrstar also has a whistleblower procedure in place, allowing staff to confidentially raise concer bout irregularities in
financial reporting, possible fraudulent actions, bribery and other areas.

Quality control

Nyrstar is ISO 9001 certified for the smelting and refining of zinc and zinc alloysglea alloys, silver, gold and other
by-products. All of its major processes and the controls that they enc a rmalized and published on the
Company’s intranet.

Financial reporting and budget control

Nyrstar applies a comprehensive Group standard for financial®repertifg® The standard is in accordance with applicable
International Accounting Standards. These include Internatignal F cial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the related

Board (IASB) and the IFRS Interpretations Committee
ss and compliance with the Group standard for financial

interpretations issued by the International Accounting

(IFRIC) as adopted by the European Union. The %
reporting is consistently reviewed and monitored,by théhaud

e

updated and communicated within Nyrstar, which amongst other things outlines the

committee.

d) follow up, a financial budgeting procedure describing the planning,
of the budget in alignment with forecasts, is closely followed. Nyrstar

vie

centrally coordinated and consists of the following steps:

1) Group business

strategic guidelin ives for the upcoming financial year.

2) Key inp ptions for the budgeting process for the upcoming financial year are provided by relevant

rs (including expected production, capex, metal prices, foreign exchange and commercial terms)

internalistal
the centralised budgeting, planning and consolidation system (BPC).

3) inputs and assumptions for the budget then go through a rigorous process of validation by relevant internal
Iders and senior management. The management committee and the board sign off on the final agreed
dget.
4) The final budget is communicated to the different Nyrstar business units and departments.
5) Nyrstar will then bi-annually communicate to shareholders the Group’s revenue and cost actual results.

Management committees

Various management committees are established as a control to manage various risks Nyrstar is exposed to:
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Treasury Committee

The treasury committee comprises the Chief Financial Officer, the Group Treasurer and the Group Controller. The role of the
treasury committee is to recommend to the Chief Executive Officer and to the board of directors amendments to the treasury
policy. This considers all treasury transactions being reviewed before they are recommended to the Chief Executive Officer
for review and approval by the board of directors. Explicitly this includes preparations for the following Chief Executive
Officer and board of directors approvals:

- to approve treasury strategies and activities, as recommended by the Group Treasurer, within the constraints of the
policy;

- to periodically review treasury operations and activities, approve the use of new financial instru t typeshand
techniques for managing financial exposures;

- to approve the list of authorized counterparties for foreign exchange and money market transactions;

- to approve the use of payment term extensions and cash discounts on commercial tr that'would go beyond
standard business conditions; and Q%

- to approve the list of bank relationships. %

The treasury committee meets at least quarterly. V

Commodity Risk Management Committee Q

The Commodity Risk Management Committee comprises of t i inancial Officer, the Group Treasurer, the Group

Controller and the Group Manager Financial Planning & Analysis. tar's commodity risk management committee
establishes policies and procedures how Nyrstar manages itS\expos 0 the commaodity prices and foreign exchange rates.

Nyrstar actively and systematically endeavors to minimize i ct on its income statement from metal price changes and
foreign exchange movements. Q
ste

Information, communication and financial re

The Group’s performance against plafiis giho d internally and relevant action is taken throughout the year. This
includes, weekly and monthly rep ygperformance indicators for the current period together with information on
critical risk areas.

Comprehensive monthly b@ari at include detailed consolidated management accounts for the period together with
an executive summal e Chief Financial Officer are prepared and circulated to the board of directors by the Company

Secretary on a mg,

Monitoring

Management iSkesponsible for evaluating existing controls and the control effectiveness and determines whether the level of
ris ted is consistent with the level of risk approved by the board of directors. Management takes action where it
is at the Group is being exposed to unacceptable levels of risk and actively encourages all Nyrstar employees
to co icate freely risks and opportunities identified.

Internal audit is an important element in the overall process of evaluating the effectiveness of the Risk Management
Framework and internal controls. The internal audits are based on risk based plans, approved by the audit committee. The
internal audit findings are presented to the audit committee and management, identifying areas of improvement. Progress of
implementation of the actions is monitored by the audit committee on a regular basis. The Group internal audit function is
managed internally. The audit committee supervises the internal audit function.

The board of directors pays specific attention to the oversight of risk and internal controls. On a yearly basis, the board of
directors reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal controls. The audit committee assists the

7
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board of directors in this assessment. The audit committee also reviews the declarations relating to internal supervision and
risk management included in the annual report of the Company. The audit committee reviews the specific arrangements to
enable staff to express concerns in confidence about any irregularities in financial reporting and other areas e.g.,

whistleblower arrangements.

To support the protocols described above, both internal resources and external contractors are engaged to perform
compliance checks, and reports are provided to the audit committee.

Other

The Group is committed to the ongoing review and improvement of its policies, systems and processes.

Financial and Operational Risks

The principal risks and uncertainties, which Nyrstar faces, along with the impact and the procedures i

the risks, are detailed in the tables below:

to mitigate

FINANCIAL RISKS

Description

Impact

Commodity price risk

Nyrstar's results are largely
dependent on the market prices of
commodities and raw materials,
which are cyclical and volatile.

Profitability will vary with the volatili

metals prices.

engages in transactional
edging which means that it will

b Undertake short-term hedging

transactions to cover the timing risk
between raw material purchases and
sales of metal and to cover its
exposure on fixed-price forward sales
of metal to customers.

From time to time, Nyrstar may also
decide to enter into certain strategic
metal price hedges to lock prices that
are considered as favorable and
providing price certainty to the
Company’s operations that may
otherwise face difficulties related to
their liquidity and profitability in a
reasonably possible pricing decline.

S

Forward pri

Nyrstar is d to the shape of
th rd Wprice curve for
un al prices.

The volatility in the London Metal Exchange
price creates differences between the
average price we pay for the contained metal
and the price we receive for it.

Nyrstar engages in transactional
hedging which means that it will
undertake short-term hedging
transactions to cover the timing risk
between raw material purchases and
sales of metal and to cover its
exposure on fixed-price forward sales
of metal to customers.

From time to time, Nyrstar may also
decide to enter into certain strategic
metal price hedges to lock prices that
are considered as favorable and
providing price certainty to the
Company’s operations that may

8
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otherwise face difficulties related to
their liquidity and profitability in a
reasonably possible pricing decline.

Foreign
rate risk

Currency Exchange

Nyrstar is exposed to the effects
of exchange rate fluctuations.

Movement of the U.S. Dollar, the Australian
Dollar, Canadian Dollar, Swiss Franc, the
Peruvian Sol, the Mexican Peso or other

currencies in which Nyrstar's costs are

Nyrstar has not entered and does not

currently intend to enter into

transactions that seek to hedge or
mitigate its exposure to exchange rate

denominated against the Euro could | fluctuations, other than short-term
adversely affect Nyrstar's profitability and | hedging transactions to er the
financial position. timing risk between ¢ con€entgate
purchases and salegg0f I to
cover its expo fixed-price
forward sales of stomers.
N
Interest rate risk & leverage risk | Changes in interest rates may impact primary | Nyrstar' rest rate risk
loans and borrowings by changing the levels | man@agemeng, policy is to limit the
Nyrstar is exposed to interest rate | ot o quired interest payments. ' of Y aliverse interest rate
risk primarily on loans and through the use of
borrowings. Nyrstar's indebtedness increas est rate management tools.
significantly in 2011 in order to finan
Nyrstar is exposed to risks ;

inherent with higher leverage and
compliance with debt covenants.

expansion into mining and is now

risks inherent with higher leyerag
compliance with debt covenant

debt covenants will jeopar@izefith

che
ncing
structure of Nyrstar.

Debt covenants and required head

‘room are monitored by Nyrstar on an

on-going basis.

Credit risk

Nyrstar is exposed to the risk of

non-payment from any
counterparty in relation to sales

goods and other transactions.

Liquidity risk

Nyrstar r nificant
amount to “finance its
debt, and fund itSvacquisitions, its
capital i nts and its growth
strate quidity risk arises from

the possibility that Nyrstar will not
be able to meet its financial

obligations as they fall due.

4

flo d
-payment.

Group income may be

impacte

Nyrstar has determined a credit policy
with credit limit requests, use of credit
enhancements such as letters of

credit, approval procedures,
continuous monitoring of the credit
exposure and dunning procedure in

case of delays.

Liquidity is negatively impacted and this may
have a material adverse effect on the funding
of operations, capital investments, the growth
strategy and the financial condition of the
Company.

Liquidity risk is addressed by
maintaining a sufficient degree of
diversification of funding sources as
determined by management, detailed,

periodic cash flow forecasting and

conservatively set limits on
permanently  to be available
headroom liquidity as well as
maintaining ongoing readiness to

access financial markets within a

short period of time.

Treatment charge (TC) risk

Despite its further integration into
mining, Nyrstar's results remain

A decrease in TCs can be expected to have
a material adverse effect on Nyrstar's
business, results of operations and financial

TCs are negotiated on an annual
basis. The impact of TC levels is
expected to further decrease in the

future in line with the implementation

9
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correlated to the levels of TCs
that it charges zinc miners to
refine their zinc concentrates and
lead miners to refine their lead
concentrates. TCs are cyclical in
nature.

condition.

of the SSR projects and the Port Pirie
Redevelopment.

Energy price risk

Nyrstar's sites,
particularly
energy intensive,
costs accounting for a significant
part
Electricity in particular represents
a very significant part of

production costs.

operating

its smelters, are

with  energy
its costs.

of operating

its

Increases in energy, particularly electricity,
prices would significantly increase Nyrstar's
costs and reduce its margins.

Nyrstar attempts to limit its exposure
to short term energy price fluctuations
through forward purchases
contracts and participation e
purchasing consorti

ng term
ay

Talvivaara

During recent years Nyrstar has
grown via acquisitions, which
involve risks. In January 2010,
Nyrstar agreed to acquire 1.25
of  zinc

concentrate from Talvivaara for a

million  tonnes in
purchase price of US$ 335 million
(approximately EUR 243 million)
(the

Agreement”).

“Zinc Streaming
Talvivaara
Sotkamo, the operating company
of the Talvivaara group, has
experienced operational issues
and liquidity constraints and

currently in bankruptcy.

Under the Finnish B
the  bankruptcy

Streaming
would res

ranked creditor to the
pany’s estate. To
the
statements, the Trustee has not
the
Agreement.

a Seco
Oper

the al of financial

voided Zinc  Streaming

Nyrstar is exposed to considerable
uncertainties as to the outcome of tie
Talvivaara bankruptcy proceedings.
Trustee is currently running a sale

to sell the assets of the Operati

upfront  holiday
whereby Nyrstar will purchase the zinc in
concentrate at market price during the initial
ramp up period of the operations of the
Operating Company and a reduction in the
the

reduced payment terms per the original Zinc

percentage of production to which

Streaming Agreement will apply.

‘beneficial

ues to work actively with
ee, the Finnish Government
her key stakeholders to explore
options that would find a mutually
financial  solution  for
Talvivaara’s operation and would
result in the obligations under the zinc

streaming agreement being met.

10
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OPERATIONAL RISKS

Description

Impact

Mitigation

Operational risks

In operating mines, smelters and
other production facilities, Nyrstar
is required to obtain and comply
with licenses to operate.

In addition Nyrstar is subject to
many risks and hazards, some of
its control,
including: unusual or unexpected
geological
natural catastrophes, interruptions
to power supplies; congestion at
commodities transport terminals;

which are out of

or climatic events;

industrial action or disputes; civil

unrest, strikes, workforce
limitations, technical failures, fires,
explosions and other accidents;
delays and other problems in
major investment projects (such as

the ramping-up of mining assets).

Nyrstar's business could be adversely
affected if Nyrstar fails to obtain, maintain or
renew necessary licenses and permits, or
fails to comply with the terms of its licenses
or permits.

The impact of these risks could result in
damage to, or destruction of, properties or
processing or production facilities,
reduce or cause production to cease at
those properties or production facilities. The
risks may further result in personal injury or
death,
interruption, monetary losses and possible
legal liability.
publicity, including that generated by n
bodies, may further
Nyrstar’s operations.

may

environmental damage, business

litigation and Negative

governmental

Nyrstar may become subj
against which Nyrstar h

cannot insure, includi
past activities. Sh

Nyrstar's process risk management
system incorporating assessment of
safety, environment, production and
quality the
identification of risk control measures,

risks, which includes

such as preventative maintenance,
critical spares invent nd
operational procedures.

Corporate Soci ibility and
the Nyrstar oundatio projects
enable to closely with

local

itieSyto maintain a good
ship

currently has insurance
its operating

its zinc and

ge for risks

associated with lead

¥ smelters and mining operations which

includes all risk property damage
(including certain aspects of business
interruption), operational and product
liability, marine stock and transit and

directors' and officers' liability.

Supply risk

Nyrstar is dependent on a limited
lead concentrate.
partially dependent on th
of zinc and lead sec

materials. In addi r

mining and sm tions in

developing ountries

upply could have a material
on Nyrstar’s production levels

results. Unreliable energy

costs after a major power outage.

Nyrstar management is taking steps
to secure raw materials from other
sources, increase its flexibility to treat
varying qualities of raw material and
secondary materials.

Nyrstar is continuously monitoring the
This
includes also considering alternate

energy market worldwide.

energy supply, e.g. wind power at
mine sides.

Nyrstar operations are subject to

stringent environmental and health
laws and regulations, which are
subject to change from time to
time. Nyrstar's operations are also
to climate

subject change

legislation.

If Nyrstar breaches such laws and
regulations, it may incur fines or penalties,
be required to curtail or cease operations, or
be
compliance costs or significant costs for

rehabilitation or rectification works.

subject to significantly increased

Safety is one of the core values of

Nyrstar, and currently it is
implementing common safety policies
with
safety

audits. Nyrstar pro-actively monitors

across all sites along

corresponding health and

changes to environmental, health and
safety laws and regulations.

11
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International operations risk

Nyrstar's mining and smelting
operations
jurisdictions, including developing
countries and emerging markets

are located in

These risks include, amongst others, the
destruction of property, injury to personnel
the curtailment  of
operations, war, terrorism, kidnappings, civil

and cessation or
disturbances and activities of governments

which limit or disrupt markets and restrict the

Nyrstar performs a thorough risk
assessment on a country-by-country
basis when considering its investment
activities. In addition Nyrstar attempts
to conduct its business and financial

affairs focusing to minimize to the

that have varying political, | oyement of funds or suppliers. Political | extent reasonably practicable the
economic, security and other risks. | icials may be prone to corruption or | political, legal, regulatory  and
In addition Nyrstar is exposed to bribery, which violates Company policy and | economic  risks  applicable to
nationalism and tax risks by virtue | 5 ersely affects operations. operations in the countris where
of the international nature of its Nyrstar operates. \
activities.
o

Reserves and resource risk Replacement reserves may not be available | Nyrstar i t services of

when required or, if available, may not be of | appr ified experts to

Nyrstar's future profitability and
operating margins depend partly
upon Nyrstar's ability to access
that
geological characteristics enabling

mineral reserves have

mining at competitive costs. This is

by
successful

done either  conducting

and
by
containing

exploration

development activities or
acquiring properties
economically recoverable

reserves.

a quality capable of being mined at costs
comparable to existing mines.

Project execution risk

Nyrstar's growth strategy relies in

Port
SSR programme of projec

Pirie  Redevelopment

erify the quantum of
resources including ore
geological
teristics under relevant global

and other

standards for measurement of mineral
‘resources.
| issues or cost overruns in | These risks are being careful
ould adversely impact the | managed by a dedicated
ess cases which justified these | technical/project team in smelting
impact Nyrstar's financial | (including external resources where
needed). All investments leverage
internal know how “off the shelf’
technology or a different application of
an existing technology.

Al

or

P

vents which occurred after the end of the financial year

note 41 (subsequent events) in the IFRS Financial Statements.

4. Information regarding the circumstances that could significantly affect the development of the Group

No information regarding the circumstances that could significantly affect the development of the Company are to be

mentioned, except for the circumstances described in Note 19 of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended

31 December 2014.

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are covered in section 2 of this report.
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5. Research and development

The Group undertakes research and development through a number of activities at various production sites of the Group.

6. Financial risks and information regarding the use by the Company of financial instruments to the extent

relevant for the evaluation of its assets, liabilities, financial position and results

Please refer to note 3 (Significant accounting policies), note 5 (Financial risk management) and note 34 (Financial

instruments) in the IFRS Financial Statements.

7. Information provided in accordance with article 624 of the Belgian Company Code

The treasury shares reserve comprises the par value of the Company’s share held by the Group. A
the Group held a total of 12,664,057 of the Company’s shares (31 December 2013: 15,338,431).

In 2014 Nyrstar sold 2,500,000 shares (2013: 3,065,000) to a financial institution and t
LESOP (note 33), for a cash consideration of EUR 4.9 million (2013: EUR 5.3 million).

During 2014 the Group settled its LTIP Grants and Deferred Shares Awards. A total
allocated to the employees as a part of this settlement.

At 23 September 2014, the Group acquired from the market 29,778 shar
for a total consideration of EUR 0.1 million.

iéipa in relation with the

shares (2013: 487,927) were

for an amount of EUR 2.14 per share,

Issued shares (\ 2014 2013
Shares outstanding V 327,381,031 154,684,113
Treasury shares 12,664,057 15,338,431
As at 31 Dec Q 340,045,088 170,022,544
Movement in shares outstanding 2014 2013
As at 1 Jan 154,684,113 162,676,718
Capital increase 170,022,544 -
Purchases of treasury share (29,778) (13,245,757)
Sales relating to LESOP 2,500,000 4,765,225
Transfer relating to LTIP 204,152 487,927
As at 31 Dec 327,381,031 154,684,113
Movement in t res 2014 2013
15,338,431 7,345,826

Purchases 29,778 13,245,757
es refating/to LESOP (2,500,000) (4,765,225)

T ating to LTIP (204,152) (487,927)
As a ec 12,664,057 15,338,431
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8. Audit committee

The audit committee consists of three non-executive members of the board, all of which are independent members. The
members of the audit committee have sufficient expertise in financial matters to discharge their functions. The Chairman of
the audit committee is competent in accounting and auditing as evidenced by his current role as Chief Financial Officer of
the Belgacom Group and his previous roles as Chief Financial Officer in Matav and Ameritech International.

9. Information that have an impact in the event of public takeovers bids

The Company provides the following information in accordance with article 34 of the Royal Decree dated 14 November
2007:

(i) The share capital of the Company amounts to EUR 34,004,508.88and is fully paid-up. It is represented b ,0457088
shares, each representing a fractional value of EUR 0.10 or one 340,045,088th of the share capi Company’s
shares do not have a nominal value.

(i) Other than the applicable Belgian legislation on the disclosure of significant shareholdi e COmpany’s articles
of association, there are no restrictions on the transfer of shares.

(i) There are no holders of any shares with special control rights.

(iv) The awards granted to employees under the Nyrstar Long Term Incentive P , the Co-Investment Plan and the
Leveraged Employee Stock Ownership Plan will vest upon de i by the nomination and remuneration
committee.

(v) Each shareholder of Nyrstar is entitled to one vote per .WotiRg rights may be suspended as provided in the

Company'’s articles of association and the applicable laws and akticl

(vi) There are no agreements between shareholders whi own by the Company and may result in restrictions on the

(vii) The rules governing appointment and re
atiog

acegent of board members and amendment to articles of association are set
dithe Company’s corporate governance charter.

pecifically with regard to the power to issue or redeem shares are set out
. The board of directors was not granted the authorization to purchase its own
shares “to avoid immi dus danger to the Company” (i.e., to defend against public takeover bids). The

Company’s articles of as of association do not provide for any other specific protective mechanisms against

public takeover

rty to the following significant agreements which, upon a change of control of the Company or

(ix)

id can enter into force or, subject to certain conditions, as the case may be, can be amended, be

Nyrstar's Revolving Structured Commodity Trade Finance Credit Facility;

. 5.5% senior unsecured fixed rate non-convertible bonds due 2015;

. 5.375% senior unsecured fixed rate non-convertible bonds due 2016;

. 4.25% senior unsecured convertible bonds due 2018;

. Nyrstar's uncommitted credit facility with HSBC Trinkaus & Burkhardt AG;

. The USD 125 million uncommitted facility agreement dated 25 May 2012 between Nyrstar Sales & Marketing
AG and the Royal Bank of Scotland plc, Belgium Branch as amended from time to time;

. The USD 40 million framework agreement for credit products between Nyrstar Sales & Marketing AG and
Credit Suisse AG;

. Nyrstar's committed EUR 100 million bilateral credit facility with KBC Bank;

14
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. Nyrstar’s silver prepay with Merrill Lynch International;

. Nyrstar’s silver prepay with JPMorgan Chase Bank;

. Nyrstar’s off-take agreement with the Glencore Group;

. Nyrstar's streaming agreement with Talvivaara Sotkamo Limited;
. High-Yield Bonds; and

. Silver Pre-Pay Guarantee

(x) The Acting Chief Executive Officer is currently entitled to a 12-month salary payment in case his employment is
terminated upon a change of control of the Company.

No takeover bid has been instigated by third parties in respect of the Company’s equity during the previous fi ial year

and the current financial year.

Done at Brussels on 4 February 2015. < :%

On behalf of the board of directors, %

V7 7

Julien De Wilde

Director Q or
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY

The undersigned, Heinz Eigner, Acting Chief Executive Officer & Chief Financial Officer, declare that, to the best of his
knowledge, the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014, which has been prepared in
accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and with the legal
requirements applicable in Belgium, give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of
Nyrstar NV and the entities included in the consolidation, and that the consolidated management report includes a true and
fair overview of the development and the performance of the business and of the position of Nyrstar NV, and the entities
included in the consolidation, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties which they are ex to.

Brussels, 4 February 2015 Q

Heinz Eigner
Acting Chief Executive Officer & Chief Financial Officer
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

EUR million Note 2014 2013
Revenue 7 2,798.8 2,823.5
Raw materials used (1,410.7) (1,486.6)
Freight expense (95.4) (85.7)
Gross profit 1,292.7 1,251.2
Other income 22,26 49.2 53.1
Employee benefits expense 10 (410.9) (391.3)
Energy expenses (277.2) 9.8)
Stores and consumables used (176.7) (179.7)
Contracting and consulting expense (137.7) .7)
Other expense 13 (58.2) (63.3)
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation 14,15,19 (257.4) (220.1)
Result from operating activities before exceptional items 23.8 / (45.6)
M&A related transaction expense 9 (0.2) .7)
Restructuring expense 28 1 (5.3) (18.5)
Impairment loss 16 (9.2) (227.5)
Impairment reversal 1 - 207.4
Result from operating activities 9.1 (85.9)
Finance income 1 2.1 0.9
Finance expense (113.9) (99.5)
Net foreign exchange gain / (loss) 1 4.2 (0.6)
Net finance expense (107.6) (99.2)
Share of (loss) / profit of equity accounted investees 17 (0.4) 0.8
Gain on the disposal of equity accounted investees 17 1.0 -
Loss before income tax (97.9) (184.3)
Income tax benefit / (expense) 12 8.1 (11.2)
Loss for the year (89.8) (195.4)
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent (89.8) (195.4)
Non-controlling interest - -
Loss per share for loss attributable§ olders of the Company

during the period (expressed i

basic 33 (0.38) (0.98)
diluted 33 (0.38) (0.98)

The accompanyi otes arg an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

EUR million Note 2014 2013

Loss for the year (89.8) (195.4)
Other comprehensive income

Items that may be reclassified to profit:

Foreign currency translation differences 109.0 (90.0)
Transfers to the income statement = -
Gains on cash flow hedges 20 18.4 16.2
Transfers to the income statement 0.7 7.5

)

Transfers to the income statement - 12.9

Income tax expense 12 (3.8) \ 3
Change in fair value of investments in equity securities 18 0.7 : (8.8)

Items that will not be reclassified to profit:

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans 29 (10.6) 9.2
Income tax benefit / (expense) 12 1 2.5 (3.1)
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year, net of tax 116.9 (60.4)
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year 27.1 (255.8)
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 27.1 (255.8)
Non-controlling interest - -
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year 27.1 (255.8)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidat: | statements.

<
S
<§3°
AN
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

nyrstar

as at as at

EUR million Note 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013
Property, plant and equipment 14 1,917.3 1,771.5
Intangible assets 15 14.0 10.3
Investments in equity accounted investees 17 15.8 18.6
Investments in equity securities 18 28.2 27.5
Zinc purchase interest 19 249.8 224.3
Deferred income tax assets 12 1315 120.6
Other financial assets 20 315 104
Other assets 22 2.5 3.2
Total non-current assets 2,390.6 \ 4
Inventories 21 625.6 515.6
Trade and other receivables 23 201.4 174.9
Prepayments and deferred expenses 15.9 175
Current income tax assets 11.2 6.5
Other financial assets 20 39.6 26.6
Other assets 22 1 1.0 -
Cash and cash equivalents 2 498.5 292.3
Total current assets 1,393.2 1,033.4
Total assets 3,783.8 3,219.8
Share capital and share premium 1,892.7 1,649.7
Reserves (117.3) (274.5)
Accumulated losses (620.3) (505.6)
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 1,155.1 869.6
Total equity 1,155.1 869.6
Loans and borrowings 27 862.2 839.9
Deferred income tax liabilities 12 158.0 174.2
Provisions 28 214.9 208.6
Employee benefits 29 86.8 71.0
Other financial liabilities 20 0.1 3.9
Deferred income 31 89.5 -
Other liabilities 22 - 55.6
Total non-current liabilities 1,411.5 1,353.2
Trade and other payables 30 610.5 486.0
Current income tax liabilitj 8.1 17.1
Loans and borrowings 27 74.6 121.9
Provisions 28 12.0 17.1
Employee benefi 29 58.4 33.1
Other financial S 20 27.9 20.8
31 425.3 294.7

22 0.4 6.3

ilities 1,217.2 997.0

2,628.7 2,350.2

Total equity and liabilities 3,783.8 3,219.8

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Total amount

nyrstar

attributable Non-

Share Share Accumulated to controlling Total
EUR million Note capital premium Reserves losses shareholders interest equity
As at 1 Jan 2014 1,297.6 352.1 (274.5) (505.6) 869.6 - 869.6
Loss for the year - - - (89.8) (89.8) = (89.8)
Other comprehensive
income - - 125.0 (8.1) 116.9 - 116.9
Total comprehensive income - - 125.0 (97.9) 27.1 - 27.1
Capital increase 17.0 226.0 - - 243.0 - 243.0
Change in par value 25 (353.7) 353.7 26.4 (26.4) - - -
Treasury shares - - 5.8 7.3 13.1 - 13.1
Share-based payments - - - 2.3 2.3 - 2.3
As at 31 Dec 2014 960.9 931.8 (117.3) (620.3) 1,155.1 - 1,155.1

Non-

Share Share Accumulate controlling Total
EUR million Note capital premium Reserves interest equity
As at 1 Jan 2013 1,324.8 352.1 (207.5) 1,161.8 - 1,161.8
Loss for the year - - - (195.4) - (195.4)
Other comprehensive
loss - - (6 A (60.4) - (60.4)

)7

Total comprehensive loss - - . (189.3) (255.8) - (255.8)
Change in par value 25 - - 3.2) - - -
Treasury shares - - (29. (10.2) (29.6) - (29.6)
Convertible bond - 15. - 15.7 - 15.7
Distribution to
shareholders (capital
decrease) 25 (27.2) - - (27.2) - (27.2)
Share-based payments - - 4.7 4.7 - 4.7
As at 31 Dec 2013 52.1 (274.5) (505.6) 869.6 - 869.6

1,297.6
The accompanying notes are an e

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

EUR million Note 2014 2013
Loss for the year (89.8) (195.4)
Adjustment for:

Depreciation, depletion and amortisation 14,15,19 257.4 220.1
Income tax (benefit) / expense 12 (8.1) 111
Net finance expense 11 107.6 99.2
Share of loss / (profit) in equity accounted investees 17 0.4 (0.8)
Impairment loss (net) 16 9.2 20.1
Equity settled share based payment transactions 4.8 5.3
Other non-monetary items (36.7) 1)
Gain on disposal of equity accounted investees 17 (1.0 \ -
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 14 (0.8) (2.1)
Cash flow from operating activities before working capital changes 243.0 124.4
Change in inventories (42.5) / 198.5
Change in trade and other receivables (7.6) 38.5
Change in prepayments and deferred expenses 4.2 (5.5)
Change in deferred income 1 164.7 88.8
Change in trade and other payables 62.7 (151.6)
Change in other assets and liabilities (80.6) 65.6
Change in provisions and employee benefits 2.2 (28.5)
Income tax paid (35.0) (31.3)
Cash flow from operating activities 311.1 298.9
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 4 (272.6) (192.2)
Acquisition of intangible assets 15 (2.9) 1.1
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 4.0 3.6

Proceeds from sale of intangible assets 1.3 0.1
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired 8 - (2.8)
Acquisition of investment in equity securities Q - (0.2)

Distribution from equity accounted investees - 0.5
Proceeds from sale of equity accounted inve, 17 3.3 -
Interest received 2.0 1.0
Cash flow used in investing activitie (264.9) (191.2)
Capital increase 243.0 -
Sale of own shares 25 12.6 11.7
Proceeds from borrowings 340.1 122.1
Repayment of borrowing (371.2) (17.2)
Interest paid (101.8) (84.0)
Distribution to sh 25 - (24.0)
Cash flow fromffinagciag activities 122.7 8.7
Net incre d 168.9 116.5
Cash at th inning of the year 24 292.3 188.1
E fluctuations 37.3 (12.2)
C d of the year 24 498.5 292.3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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1. Reporting entity

Nyrstar NV (the “Company”) is an integrated mining and metals business, with market leading positions in zinc and lead,
and growing positions in other base and precious metals. Nyrstar has mining, smelting, and other operations located in
Europe, Australia, China, Canada, the United States and Latin America. Nyrstar is incorporated and domiciled in Belgium
and has its corporate office in Switzerland. The address of the Company’s registered office is Zinkstraat 1, 2490 Balen,
Nyrstar is listed on NYSE Euronext Brussels under the symbol NYR. For further information please visit the Nyrstar website,

www.nyrstar.com.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 December 2014, co the
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as “Nyrstar” or the “Group” and individually as “Group,enfitieg”) the
Group’s interest in associates and jointly controlled entities. The consolidated financial statements wer: ised for issue

by the board of directors of Nyrstar NV on 4 February 2015.

2. Basis of preparation

(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of Nyrstar are prepared in ageord ith International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union. These include Internation al Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the
related interpretations issued by the International Accounting S s Beard (IASB), and the IFRS Interpretations

Committee (IFRIC), effective at the reporting date and adoptedyby  the European Union. The consolidated financial

statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
(b) Basis of measurement '

The consolidated financial statements have bgen pré under the historical cost basis except for derivative financial
value through profit or loss (note 20), and available-for-sale financial

instruments (note 20), financial instrumen
assets (note 18).

(c) Functional and presentationd

economic environment in Whi tity operates (the ‘functional’ currency). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in EUR w, pany’s functional and presentation currency. All financial information has been rounded
to the nearest hug@re

(d) Use of tes apf judgements

The pfeparatignef financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
al S Amanagement to exercise its judgements in the process of applying Nyrstar's accounting policies. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Critical accounting estimates and judgements are disclosed in
note 4.

(e) Standards, amendments and interpretations

The following new and revised standards and interpretations, effective as of 1 January 2014, have been adopted in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:
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IFRS 10, IFRS 11, IFRS 12, IAS 27 and IAS 28 (the “Consolidation Standards”)

IFRS 10 provides a single basis for consolidation with a new definition of control based on having the power to direct the
relevant activities of the investee. IFRS 11 impacts the accounting for joint arrangements, defined as investments or
arrangements which are subject to joint control through contractually agreed sharing of control between two or more parties.
A joint arrangement is classified as either a joint operation or a joint venture, and the option to proportionately consolidate
joint ventures has been removed requiring them to be accounted for under the equity method whilst joint operations are
accounted for using the proportionate consolidation method. IFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable to
entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities. There
were no changes in the accounting previously applied to the Nyrstar subsidiaries and investments as a result of thé>adoption
of the Consolidation Standards. The adoption of the Consolidation Standards required retrospective applicatiof.

IFRS 10, 12 and IAS 27 Investment Entities — Amendment to IFRS 10, 12 and IAS 27

The amendments to IFRS 10 define an investment entity and introduce an exception from the requirement 16 consolidate
subsidiaries for an investment entity. In terms of the exception, an investment entity is required

eas its interests in
inlgstment entities that
ts to IFRS 12 and IAS
ments have been applied

subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss. The exception does not apply to subsidi
provide services that relate to the investment entity’s investment activities. Consequentialfamen
27 have been made to introduce new disclosure requirements for investment entiti
retrospectively and did not impact the Group.

IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities — Amendmen IAS 32

The amendments to IAS 32 clarify the requirements relating to the @ffset of fipancial assets and liabilities. Specifically, the
amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally enf, e fight to set-off” and “simultaneous realisation and
settlement”. The amendments have been applied retrospectively andidid have a material impact on the Group.

IAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Fin i sets — Amendment to IAS 36

The amendments to IAS 36 remove the requirement DS€E the recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit (CGU) to

which goodwill or other intangible assets wit nite O | lives had been allocated when there has been no impairment

or reversal of impairment of the related rmore, the amendments introduce additional disclosure requirements

applicable to when the recoverable am set or a CGU is measured at fair value less costs of disposal. These
new disclosures include the fair v ey assumptions and valuation techniques used which are in line with the

disclosure required by IFRS e Measurements. Other than the additional disclosures, the application of

amendments to IAS 36 did ct tl mounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements (see note 16).

IAS 39 Novation of tives Continuation of Hedge Accounting — Amendment to IAS 39

The amendme to 39 provide relief from the requirement to discontinue hedge accounting when a derivative
designated ingginstrument is novated under certain circumstances. The amendments also clarify that any change
to the fai f the”derivative designated as a hedging instrument arising from the novation should be included in the
assesSment easurement of hedge effectiveness. The amendments have been applied retrospectively. As the Group
dog€s not ny derivatives that are subject to novation, the application of these amendments has had no impact on the

disclosureg or on the amounts recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

The following new standards, amendments of standards and interpretations have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2014 and have not been early adopted:

New standards
e IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (as revised in 2014)
e |IFRS 14 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts

e |FRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers
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Amendments to existing standards and interpretations

¢ Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture

e Amendments to IFRS 11 — Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations

e Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 - Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

e Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41 - Agriculture: Bearer Plants

e Amendments to IAS 27 - Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements \
e Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle %

e Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle %

e Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle

e IFRIC 21 Levies

IFRIC 21 was endorsed by the European Union on 13 June 2014 and effective s beginning on or after 17 June
2014. The other new standards, amendments to existing standards and in tions noted above have not yet been
endorsed by the European Union. The Directors are currently evaluating the% these new and revised standards may

have on the financial statements of the Group.

3. Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been apg
statements and have been applied consistently by the

(a) Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

sroup has control. The Group controls another entity, when it is exposed, or has
ent with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
than a majority of the voting rights, it has power over another entity when the voting

Subsidiaries are all entities ov
rights, to variable returns fr
the entity. When the com

rights are sufficient it ractical ability to direct the relevant activities of the other entity unilaterally. The Group

considers all releyant d circumstances in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in the other entity are
sufficient to gi er. Phe Group reassesses whether or not it controls another entity if facts and circumstances indicate

that there ng one or more of the three elements of control. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on

ansferred to the Group until the date that the control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries in these consolidated financial
statements. The assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquired entity are measured at their fair values at the date
of acquisition. Provisional fair values allocated at a reporting date are finalised within twelve months of the acquisition date.
The cost of acquisition is measured as the fair value of assets transferred to, shares issued to or liabilities undertaken on
behalf of the previous owners at the date of acquisition. Acquisition-related costs are expensed in the period in which the
costs are incurred and the services received.
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The excess of the cost of acquisition over Nyrstar's share of the fair value of the net assets of the entity acquired is recorded
as goodwill. If Nyrstar’s share in the fair value of the net assets exceeds the cost of acquisition, the excess is recognised
immediately in the income statement.

Investments in associates and joint arrangements

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies. Significant
influence is presumed to exist when the Group holds between 20 and 50 percent of the voting power of another entity.

Joint arrangements are those arrangements of which the Group has joint control, established by contractual ag nt and
requiring unanimous consent for decisions about the relevant activities. Associates and joint ventures arefaccountetl for
using the equity method (equity accounted investees) and are initially recorded at cost. The Group’s i tment inCludes
goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment losses.

When a group entity undertakes its activities under joint operations, Gro joint operator recognises in relation to its
interest in the joint operation: (a) its assets, including its share o ts held jointly; (b) its liabilities, including its share
of any liabilities incurred jointly; (c) its revenue from the sale of he output arising from the joint operation; (d) its

. =

share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joigt ope ; and (e) its expenses, including its share of any
expenses incurred jointly. The accounting treatment for s, liabilities, revenues and expenses are accounted for by
the Group in accordance with its accounting policies Q s applicable to the particular assets, liabilities, revenues and

expenses.

Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests (NCI) in t

St of'the amount of those interests at the date of the original business combination

" setsp(excluding goodwill) of consolidated subsidiaries are identified separately
from the Group’s equity therein. %
a

(see below) and the NCI's share,o in equity since the date of the combination.

Transactions eliminat on

The consolidat inan¢lal ements include the consolidated financial information of the Nyrstar Group entities. All
intercompan S transactions with consolidated businesses have been eliminated. Unrealised gains and losses
arising fr cti with equity accounted investees are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group’s
interest in vestee. The Group accounts for the elimination of the unrealised profits resulting from intercompany
tr ti bétween the mining and smelting businesses. These transactions relate to the sales from the mining to the
sm gment which have not been realised externally.

(b) Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recognised during the period in the functional currency of each entity at exchange rates
prevailing at the date of transaction. The date of a transaction is the date at which the transaction first qualifies for
recognition. For practical reasons a rate that approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction is used at some
Group entities, for example, an average rate for the week or the month in which the transactions occur.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the closing rate at the balance sheet date.
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Gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions, and from the translation of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, are recognised in the income statement.

Foreign operations

The income statement and statement of financial position of each Nyrstar operation that has a functional currency different to
EUR is translated into the presentation currency as follows:

e Assets and liabilities are translated at the closing exchange rate at the end of the financial period;

e Income and expense are translated at rates approximating the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions; and

e All resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity. \
Exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign operations are refea %the income
statement upon disposal.

(c) Financial instruments %

Commaodity hedging, via the use of metal futures, is undertaken to reduce the Group re {0 fluctuations in commodity
prices in relation to its unrecognised firm commitments arising from fixed price fogwar ntracts.

Derivatives are initially recognised at their fair value on the date Nyrstar beco %to the contractual conditions of the
instrument . The method of recognising the changes in fair value subsequ ecognition is dependent upon whether

the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, the nature @f the u ing item being hedged and whether the
arrangement qualifies for hedge accounting.

underlying hedged item.

Fair value hedges

A hedge of the fair value of a asset or liability or of a firm commitment is referred to as a fair value hedge.

Changes in the fair value of ifrat are designated and qualify as fair value hedges, are recorded in the income

statement, together with cRan air value of the underlying hedged item attributable to the risk being hedged.

Cash flow hedges

A hedge of to be received or paid relating to a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast

transacti as a cash flow hedge. The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated ualify as cash flow hedges is recognised outside of the income statement, directly in other comprehensive
in IMthe Medging reserve. Changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges relating to the ineffective portion are recorded
in e statement. Amounts accumulated in the hedging reserve are recycled through the income statement in the
same d that the underlying hedged item is recorded in the income statement. When a hedge no longer meets the

criteria for hedge accounting, and the underlying hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur, any cumulative gain or
loss recognised in the hedging reserve is transferred to the income statement. When a hedge is sold or terminated, any gain
or loss made on termination is only deferred in the hedging reserve where the underlying hedged transaction is still expected
to occur.

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument that
does not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in the income statement. Where an embedded derivative
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is identified and the derivative’s risks and characteristics are not considered to be closely related to the underlying host
contract, the fair value of the derivative is recognised on the consolidated statement of financial position and changes in the
fair value of the embedded derivative are recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Investments in equity securities

The classification of investments depends on the purpose for which the investments have been acquired. Management
determines the classification of investments at initial recognition. These investments are classified as available-for-sale
financial assets and are included in non-current assets unless the Group intends to dispose of the investment within 12

months of the balance sheet date.
The fair value of investments in equity securities is determined by reference to their quoted closing bid price %\ing

date. Any impairment charges are recognised in profit or loss, while other changes in fair value are niséd in other
comprehensive income. When investments are sold, the accumulated fair value adjustment d In other
comprehensive income are included in the income statement within ‘gain/loss on sale of investments in equity urities’.

(d) Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement ( )

Items of property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated d ciatign and impairment. The cost of self-
iat (o]

constructed assets includes the cost of materials, direct labour, and an appro n of production overheads.

The cost of self-constructed assets and acquired assets include estimates
the assets and restoring the site on which they are located and the,area

ts of closure, dismantling and removing
isturbed. All items of property, plant and
equipment, are depreciated on a straight-line and/or unit of proddcti sis) Freehold land is not depreciated.

Once a mining project has been established as commerci ble, enditure other than that on land, buildings, plant and

equipment is capitalised under ‘Mining properties angd=d t' together with any previously capitalised expenditures

commercial and technological developg . Changes to the estimated residual values or useful lives are accounted for

prospectively in the period in whi %
Depreciation Q
Straight-line basis %

%e lesser of the life of the assets or as follows:

esar
. | 14 ars

lantfan@ equipment: 3 - 25 years

un uction basis

e For mining properties and development assets and certain mining equipment, the economic benefits from the asset
are consumed in a pattern which is linked to the production level. Such assets are depreciated on a unit of
production basis. However, assets within mining operations for which production is not expected to fluctuate
significantly from one year to another or which have a physical life shorter than the related mine are depreciated on
a straight line basis as noted above.

e In applying the unit of production method, depreciation is normally calculated using the quantity of material
extracted from the mine in the period as a percentage of the total quantity of material to be extracted in current and
future periods based on proved and probable reserves and, for some mines, other mineral resources. Such non
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reserve material may be included in depreciation calculations in circumstances where there is a high degree of
confidence in its economic extraction.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items
of property, plant and equipment.

Critical spare parts purchased for particular items of plant, are capitalised and depreciated on the same basis as the plant to
which they relate.

Assets under construction

During the construction phase, assets under construction are classified as construction in progress within proper and
equipment. Once commissioned these assets are reclassified to property, plant and equipment at which et will
commence being depreciated over their useful life.

Mineral properties and mine development costs

The costs of acquiring mineral reserves and mineral resources are capitalised on the t Of, financial position as
incurred. Capitalised costs representing mine development costs include costs incurred to bring,the mining assets to a
condition of being capable of operating as intended by management. Mineral r some instances mineral
resources and capitalised mine development costs are depreciated from the cqmme of production using generally

the unit of production basis. They are written off if the property is abandoned.

Major cyclical maintenance expenditure

Group entities recognise, in the carrying amount of an item o equipment, the incremental cost of replacing a
component part of such an item when that cost is incurred if it isSfproBab at the future economic benefits embodied within

the item will flow to the Group entity, the cost incurred is sighjficant lation to the asset and the cost of the item can be

measured reliably. Accordingly, major overhaul expendi italised and depreciated over the period in which benefits
are expected to arise (typically three to four years

income statement during the financial period in which

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation expeng tesfto costs incurred on the exploration and evaluation of potential mineral

reserves and resources and inglide such as exploratory drilling and sample testing and the costs of pre-feasibility

another mining company, i as an asset provided that one of the following conditions is met:

e such cos to be recouped in full through successful development and exploration of the area of
r r

intere ively, by its sale; or
. n evaluation activities in the area of interest have not yet reached a stage which permits a reasonable
a ent of the existence or otherwise of economically recoverable reserves, and active and significant
erations in relation to the area are continuing, or are planned for the future.

Acquired mineral rights comprise identifiable exploration and evaluation assets including mineral reserves and mineral
resources, which are acquired as part of a business combination and are recognized at fair value at date of acquisition. The
acquired mineral rights are reclassified as “mine property and development” from commencement of development and
amortised on a unit of production basis, when commercial production commences.

Capitalised exploration and evaluation assets are transferred to mine development assets once the work completed to date
supports the future development of the property and such development receives appropriate approvals.
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(e) Intangible assets
Goodwill

Goodwill is recognised in business combinations and is measured as the excess of the aggregate consideration paid, the
acquired non-controlling interest and the fair value of any pre-existing ownership interest in the acquiree less the acquisition-
date fair values of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. Identifiable assets include those acquired
mineral reserves and resources that can be reliably measured.

Goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill in respect of associates and joint ventures is
presented in the statement of financial position on the line “Investments in equity accounted investees”, togetfier with the
investment itself and tested for impairment as part of the overall balance.

Goodwill is allocated to the cash-generating unit (CGU) to which it belongs. CGU is the smalle N
includes the asset and generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from‘ether aSse
of assets. Based on Nyrstar's operating model each mining complex and each smelting siteNaas b dentified as a
ining complex as well

asSets that
or groups

separate CGU as there is an active market for zinc and other metal concentrates produce

as zinc and other metal products manufactured at Nyrstar’'s smelting sites.

Other intangible assets

Software and related internal development costs are carried at historical cost{less ated amortisation and impairment
losses. They are typically amortised over a period of five years.

CO2 emission rights/Carbon permits are carried at historical cost, less impalrment losses: These intangibles are not
amortised.

(f) Leased assets

Leases under which the Group assumes substanti isks and benefits of ownership, are classified as finance

leases, while other leases are classified as operating inance leases are capitalised with a lease asset and liability

equal to the present value of the minimum leas fair value, if lower, being recorded at the inception of the lease.

Capitalised lease assets are amortised o a -line basis over the shorter of the useful life of the asset or the lease
term. Each finance lease repayment is€@llocatedhbétween the liability and finance charges based on the effective interest

rate implied in the lease contract.

Lease payments made under @perait es are recognised in the income statement over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term. < E

(9) Inventories

Inventories o metals, concentrates and work in progress are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

e e estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion
and selling se. By-products inventory obtained as a result of the production process are valued at the lower of cost and

ne ble Yalue. Cost includes expenditure incurred in acquiring and bringing the stock to its existing condition and
lo ncludes an appropriate allocation of fixed and variable overhead expense, including depreciation and
amortisation. Stores of consumables and spares are valued at cost with allowance for obsolescence. Cost of purchase of all

inventories is determined on a FIFO basis. In addition to purchase price, conversion costs are allocated to work-in-progress
and finished goods. These conversion costs are based on the actual costs related to the completed production steps.

As the Company applies hedge accounting as referred in note 3c the hedged items of inventory are adjusted by the fair
value movement with respect to the effective portion of the hedge. The fair value adjustment remains part of the carrying
value of inventory and enters into the determination of earnings when the inventory is sold. This impact is compensated by
the hedge derivatives which are also adjusted for fair value changes.
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(h) Impairment

Financial assets

A financial asset that is not measured at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective
evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, is calculated as the difference between its
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. An
impairment loss in respect of an available-for-sale financial asset is calculated by reference to its fair value.

Significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining financial assels‘are, a: sed
collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics.

All impairment losses are recognised in the income statement. An impairment loss is reversed ifhe rev an be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised. Impairment los o) ailable for sale equity
investments are not reversed.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other than inven
each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impai

sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cas unted to their present value using a pre-tax discount

rate that reflects current market assessments of the ti oney and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose

unit”). The goodwill acquired in a busin
generating units or groups of cash gen

recoverable amount. Impairmef
cash-generating units are

reduce the carrying a tRer assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment rec@gni in respect of goodwill cannot be reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment losses
recognised i i rio re assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer

e ss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
irment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
Id have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

HE ee benefits

Short term benefits

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits and annual leave are recognised in respect of employees’
services up to the reporting date, calculated as undiscounted amounts based on remuneration wage and salary rates that
the entity expects to pay at the reporting date including related on-costs, such as payroll tax.
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Long-term employee benefits other than pension plans

A liability for long-term employee benefits is recognised in the provision for employee benefits and measured as the present
value of expected future payments to be made in respect of service provided by employees up to the balance sheet date.
Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels including related on-costs, experience of employee
departures and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on
national high quality corporate bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match the estimated future cash flows.

Defined contribution plans

Payments to defined contribution retirement plans are recognized as an expense when employees have rendgred_service
entitling them to the contributions.

Defined benefit plans %\

The Group recognizes a net liability in respect of defined benefit superannuation or medical§plans i statement of
at the balance sheet

financial position. The net liability is measured as the present value of the defined benefit
date less the fair value of the plan assets belonging to the plans and represents the act
defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the

or surplus in the Group’s
valué of any economic benefits
sset ceiling”).

alns

hat arise from membership of the
ctuaries using the projected unit credit
nce sheet date on high quality corporate

fund to the balance sheet date. This obligation is calculated annually by i
method. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at

bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match the estim cash flows. Any future taxes that are funded by
the entity and are part of the provision of the defined benefit obligati ken into account when measuring the net asset
or liability.

Defined benefit costs are split into three categories:
e  Service costs, past-service costs, gai nd | n curtailments and settlements,
e Net-interest cost or income,

e Remeasurement.

The Group presents the first neng’of defined benefit costs in the line item ‘employee benefits expenses’ and the

second component in the {ine_i nce expenses’ in its consolidated income statement. Curtailments gains and losses

are accounted for as ervice gost.

Remeasureme of actuarial gains and losses on the defined benefit obligations, the effect of the asset ceiling (if
applicable) on plan assets (excluding interest income). These are recognized immediately in the statement of
financial Pes with” a charge or credit to Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) in the period in which they occur.
Remeasure ecorded in other comprehensive income is not recycled. Those amounts recognized in other

income may be reclassified within equity. Past service costs are immediately recognized in profit or loss in the

an amendment and are not deferred anymore. Net-interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net
defined benefit liability or asset.

Share-based payment compensation

The Group operates a leveraged employee stock ownership plan and an executive long-term incentive plan, which, at the
Group’s discretion, are equity-settled or cash-settled share-based compensation plans.

The fair value of equity instruments granted under the equity-settled plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense
with a corresponding increase recognised in equity. The fair value is measured at the grant date and recognised over the
period during which the eligible employees become entitled to the shares. The amount recognised as an employee benefit

32



nyrstar

expense is the fair value multiplied by the number of equity instruments granted. At each balance sheet date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest, except
where forfeiture is only due to the Company’s share price not achieving the required target.

For cash-settled share-based payment transactions, the services received and the liability incurred are measured at the fair
value of the liability at grant date. The initial measurement of the liability is recognised over the period that services are
rendered. At each reporting date, and ultimately at settlement date, the fair value of the liability is remeasured with any
changes in fair value recognised in the income statement for the period.

(i) Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, when the Group has a present legal or constructive l@bligatiorithat
can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle bligation.

Restoration, rehabilitation and decommissioning provision

Provision is recognised for estimated closure, restoration and environmental rehabilitation t ese ‘costs include the
dismantling and demolition of infrastructure, removal of residual materials and remediatiofy of distigbed areas in the financial
year when the related environmental disturbance occurs. They are based on the esii futlire costs using information
available at each balance sheet date. The provision is discounted using a current -based pre-tax discount rate and
the unwinding of the discount is recognised as interest expense. When the provi ablished, a corresponding asset is

recognised, where it gives rise to a future benefit, and depreciated over fut uction from the operations to which it
relates.
f

The provision is reviewed on an annual basis for changes to co ion,“discount rates or other changes that impact
estimated costs or lives of the operations. The carrying value oftthe tel asset (or the income statement when no related
asset exists) is adjusted for changes in the provision resul from nges in the estimated cash flows or discount rate.

The adjusted carrying value of the asset is depreciated ly.

Restructuring provision

A constructive obligation for a restructurin

Q when two conditions are fulfilled: a) there is a formal business plan for
arg, of’ a business concerned, the principal locations affected, the location,
esgvhose services will be terminated, the expenditure to be incurred and when
aised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the plan either
by starting to implement the cing its main feature to those affected by it. Restructuring provisions include only

incremental costs associatéd di the restructuring.

Other provisions

Other provisions cogpised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive), as a result of past events,

and it is pr@ «@ tl outflow of resources that can be reliably estimated will be required to settle the obligation. Where

the effect terial, the provision is discounted to net present value using an appropriate current market-based pre-tax
dis te amd the unwinding of the discount is included in finance costs.

(k) Comp@und financial instruments

Compound financial instruments issued by the Company comprise convertible bonds that can be converted to share capital
at the option of the holder, and the number of shares to be issued is fixed.

The liability component of a compound financial instrument is recognized initially at the fair value of a similar liability that
does not have an equity conversion option. The equity component is recognized initially as the difference between the fair
value of the compound financial instrument as a whole and the fair value of the liability component, and is included in
shareholders’ equity, net of income tax effects. Any directly attributable transaction costs are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to their initial carrying amounts.
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Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial instrument is measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The equity component of a compound financial instrument is not remeasured
subsequent to initial recognition.

(I) Revenue

Revenue associated with the sale of commodities is recognised when all significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset sold are transferred to the customer, usually when insurance risk has passed to the customer and the commaodity has
been delivered to the shipping agent or the location designated by the customer. At this point Nyrstar retains neither
continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective controlgover the
commodities and the costs incurred, or to be incurred, in respect of the sale can be reliably measured.
recognised, at fair value of the consideration receivable, to the extent that it is probable that economic ben

Nyrstar and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is generally recognised based on incoterms rksS\EXW) or
carriage, insurance and freight (CIF). Revenues from the sale of by-products are also included in sal€s Revenue is
stated on a gross basis, with freight and realisation expense included in gross profit as a deducti

marked-to-market at balance sheet date based on the prevailing forward market prig
ensures that revenue is recorded at the fair value of consideration to be receiued.
recorded in sales revenue.

When Nyrstar's goods are swapped for goods that are of a similar na value, the swap is not regarded as a
transaction that generates revenue. If any settlement in cash or €ash_equivalents occurs for value equalisation of such
transactions, this settlement amount is recognised in cost of goods¥soldy When the goods swapped however are of a

dissimilar nature or value from each other, the swap is regarged as altrapsaction that generates revenue.
(m) Finance income and expense

Finance income includes: Q

e Interest income on funds investedyal

e Dividend income.

Interest income is recognised i s In the income statement using the effective interest rate method. Dividend
income is recognised in the inc tat nt on the date that the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

Finance costs include;
e Intere S term and long-term borrowings;

tiog ofgfliscounts or premiums relating to borrowings;

tisation of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings;
e lease charges; and

e impact of the unwind of discount on long-term provisions for restoration, rehabilitation and decommissioning
provision and workers’ compensation.

Finance costs are calculated using the effective interest rate method. Finance costs incurred for the construction of any
qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale. Other finance costs are expensed as incurred.

Net finance costs represent finance costs net of any interest received on funds invested. Interest income is recognised as it
accrues using the effective interest method.

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis.
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(n) Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax. Income tax expense is recognised in profit or loss except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case it is
recognised in other comprehensive income or equity.

Current income tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred income tax is recognised using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxati
Deferred income tax is not recognised for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of assets Qhlial
transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit, and en relating
to investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities to the extent that it is probable that theyi verse in the
foreseeable future. In addition a deferred income tax liability is not recognised for taxable temporary”difierenc€s arising on
the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred tax is measured on an undiscounted basis at the t that expected to be
applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have bee bstantively enacted
by the reporting date. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a{legall orceable right to offset
current income tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied ax authority on the same

taxable entity, or on different tax entities but they intend to settle current inco ax il and assets on a net basis or
their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

A deferred income tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary di arry forward of unused tax assets and

difference can be utilised. Deferred income tax assets are revie eporting date and are reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distributiopse are recognised when the distribution is expected.

Mining taxes and royalties that have the characteristie income tax are treated and disclosed as current and deferred

income taxes.

(o) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents co palances and call deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. Bank

overdrafts are repayable on d are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the consolidated statement of
financial position. For the purpose e consolidated statement of cash flows, cash includes cash on hand and deposits at
call which are readily, ertible  cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, net of any outstanding

bank overdrafts w] nised at their principal amounts.
(p) Trade & ayables

These@mo present liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group entities prior to the end of the financial year
whi unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are typically paid within 30 days of recognition. These amounts are
init] gnized at fair value and are subsequently carried at amortised cost.

(q) Deferred income

Deferred income consists of payments received by the Company in consideration for future physical deliveries of metal
inventories and future physical deliveries of metals contained in concentrate at contracted prices. As deliveries are made,
the Company recognises sales and decreases the deferred income on the basis of actual physical deliveries of the products.

(r) Trade receivables

Trade receivables represent amounts owing for goods and services supplied by the Group entities prior to the end of the
financial period which remain unpaid. They arise from transactions in the normal operating activities of the Group.
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Trade receivables are carried at amortised cost, less any impairment losses for doubtful debts. An impairment loss is
recognised for trade receivables when collection of the full nominal amount is no longer certain.

(s) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares and share
options are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effect(s).

(t) Earnings per share

Nyrstar presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by diViding the
profit for the period attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ardin res
outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit for the period attrib e ary
shareholders of the Company and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for t of alt dilutive

potential ordinary shares.
(u) Segment reporting

Operating segments are components of the Group for which discrete financial information is ilable and is evaluated

regularly by Nyrstar's Management Committee (NMC) in deciding how to allocate assess performance. The

NMC has been identified as the chief operating decision maker.

The segment information reported to the NMC is prepared in conformitygwith counting policies consistent with those
described in these financial statements and presented in the format outline

Revenues, expenses and assets are allocated to the operating § 0 the extent that items of revenue, expense and

assets can be directly attributed or reasonably allocated tq the ‘ope g segments. The interrelated segment costs have

been allocated on a reasonable pro rata basis to the opegatin gme
(v) Treasury shares

When Nyrstar reacquires its own equity inst

5, the par value of treasury shares purchased is deducted from reserves.

The difference between the par value e Sury shares purchased and the amount of consideration paid, which
includes directly attributable costs, is re a deduction from accumulated losses. Reacquired shares are classified
as treasury shares and may be a eld by the entity or by other members of the consolidated group. When

treasury shares are sold or rei quently, the amount received is recognised as an increase in equity, and the

resulting gain or loss on th recognised in accumulated losses.

(w) Zinc purchase i ts

Streaming agre the acquisition of zinc concentrates are presented on the statement of financial position as zinc

purchase i eful life is determined with reference to the number of metric tonnes to be delivered under the
contract. et is depleted through the income statement using the unit-of-production method, as the asset is recovered
with e metiic ton of zinc delivered under the contract.

x) rowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at
amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of
loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will
be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs.

To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised
as a pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.
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(y) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed as incurred unless they relate to qualifying assets. Qualifying assets are assets that take
more than 12 months to commission. In these circumstances, borrowing costs are capitalised to the cost of the assets and
depreciated over the useful life of the assets. Capitalisation is based on the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use.

(z) Exceptional items

Exceptional items are those relating to restructuring expense, M&A related transaction expense and impairment of assets
which the Group believes should be disclosed separately on the face of the consolidated income statement to@@ssist in the
understanding of the financial performance achieved by the Group.

4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements used in developing and applying the accounting policies are c ated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that
entity and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Nyr

concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, s

financial impact on the
imates and assumptions
u e related actual results. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

The critical estimates and judgements that have a significant risk of causin adjustment to the carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities within the next financial year are listed below.

Fair value

The Group has applied estimates and judgments in ac for business combinations (note 8), revenue recognition,
inventories (note 21), share-based payments (notg 8
measurements are estimated based on the amounts¥g h the assets and liabilities could be exchanged at the relevant

transaction date or reporting period end,

for its financial assets and liabilities (note 20). Fair value

ore not necessarily reflective of the likely cash flow upon actual

settlements. Where fair value measure pe derived from publicly available information, they are estimated using

transactions rarely exist.

Determination of ore rese urces estimates

Estimated recove s and resources are used to determine the depreciation of mine production assets (note 14),

in accounting f costs (note 14) and in performing impairment testing (note 16). Estimates are prepared by

appropriate sons, but will be impacted by forecast commodity prices, exchange rates, production costs and
recoverie gst other factors. Changes in assumptions may impact the carrying value of assets and depreciation and

imp t chardes recorded in the income statement.

Restoratioh, rehabilitation and decommissioning provision (note 28)

Provision is recognised for estimated closure, restoration and environmental rehabilitation costs. These costs include the
dismantling and demolition of infrastructure, removal of residual materials and remediation of disturbed areas in the financial
year when the related environmental disturbance occurs. They are based on the estimated future costs using information
available at each balance sheet date. The provision is discounted using a current market-based pre-tax discount rate and
the unwinding of the discount is recognised as interest expense. The calculation of these provision estimates requires
assumptions such as application of environmental legislation, plant closure dates, available technologies and engineering
cost estimates. A change in any of the assumptions used may have a material impact on the carrying value of restoration
provisions.
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Retirement benefits (note 29)

The expected costs of providing pensions and post employment benefits under defined benefit arrangements relating to
employee service during the period are determined based on financial and actuarial assumptions. Nyrstar makes these
assumptions in respect to the expected costs in consultation with qualified actuaries. When actual experience differs to these
estimates, actuarial gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income. Refer to note 29 for details on the key
assumptions.

Impairment of assets (note 14,15,16)

The recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit is determined as the higher of the asset’s fair value less €0sts to sell
and its value in use. These calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions such as discount rates, exchange
rates, commodity prices, future capital requirements and future operating performance. For cash-ge

comprise mining related assets, the estimates and assumptions also relate to the ore reserves and r

above). For further information refer to note 16.

Recovery of deferred tax assets (note 12)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unu@ﬁ%nyf it is probable that

future taxable profits are available to utilise those temporary differences and los tax losses continue to be

available having regard to the nature and timing of their origination and c i with the relevant tax legislation
associated with their recovery. In evaluating whether it is probable that tax itS®ill be earned in future accounting
periods, all available information is considered. The forecasts used in this t re consistent with those prepared and

used internally for business planning and impairment testing purposgs.

Recovery of zinc purchase interest (note 19)

Due to recent developments regarding the financial situai Talvivaara Mining Company plc, Nyrstar’s counterparty in
respect of its zinc purchase interest, critical judgm equited in assessing the recoverability of the zinc purchase
interest. These judgments are outlined in note 19.

5. Financial risk manageme
(a) Overview

In the normal course4@ ,*Nyrstar is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk, i.e. fluctuations in

as well as interest rates, arising from its financial instruments. Listed below is information

fr oflg, Nyfstar's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by Nyrstar, to set
ap risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing how management monitors compliance with Nyrstar’s risk management
policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risk faced by
Nyrstar. The audit committee is supported in its oversight role by the Group’s internal audit function.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of non-payment from any counterparty in relation to sales of goods. In order to manage the credit
exposure, Nyrstar has determined a credit policy with credit limit requests, approval procedures, continuous monitoring of
the credit exposure and dunning procedure in case of delays.
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Trade and other receivables

Nyrstar’'s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. Each new customer
is analysed individually for creditworthiness before the standard terms and conditions are offered. Customers that fail to
meet Nyrstar's benchmark creditworthiness may transact with Nyrstar only on a prepayment basis.

Nyrstar provides an allowance for trade and other receivables that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of
trade and other receivables and investments.

Guarantees

Nyrstar's policy is to provide financial guarantees only on behalf of wholly-owned subsidiaries. At 31 Decegb , No
guarantees were outstanding to external customers (31 December 2013 : nil). §\

(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that Nyrstar will not be able to meet its financial obligations
f di

they#fall due. Liquidity
sification of funding
bonds (e.g. convertible

risk is being addressed by maintaining, what management considers to be, a sufficient
sources. These include committed and uncommitted short and medium term bank facilities\as w
bonds and fixed rate bonds).

Nyrstar is actively managing the liquidity risk in order to ensure that at all tim s to sufficient cash resources at a

cost in line with market conditions for companies with a similar credit iquidity risk is measured by comparing

projected net debt levels against total amount of available committed fac se forecasts are being produced on a
rolling basis and include cash flow forecasts of all operational subsitiaties. Als&the average remaining life of the committed

funding facilities is monitored, at least on a quarterly basis.

The financial covenants of the existing loan agreements,are fgonito as appropriate in order to ensure compliance. No
breach of covenants has occurred during the year.

(d) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in S\will affect Nyrstar's income or the value of its investments in financial

instruments. The objective of market ment is to manage and control market exposures within acceptable

parameters while optimising the re

Commodity price risk

In the normal cours u ss, Nyrstar is exposed to risk resulting from fluctuations in the market prices of

commodities. Nyr, ngages primarily in transactional hedging which means that it undertakes short-term

ver the timing risk between raw material purchases and sales of metal and to cover its exposure

on fixed-pri s of metal to customers. Transactional hedging arrangements are accounted for in the “Other
Financial and‘the “Other Financial Liabilities” line items of the statement of financial position. Any gains or losses
realisethfro ging arrangements are recorded within operating result. Nyrstar generally does not undertake any
stractu tegic hedging which means that its results are largely exposed to fluctuations in zinc, lead and other metal

prices. Nyfstar reviews its hedging policy on a regular basis.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

Nyrstar's assets, earnings and cash flows are influenced by movements in exchange rates of several currencies, particularly
the U.S. Dollar, the Euro, the Australian Dollar, the Canadian Dollar, the Peruvian Sol, the Chilean Peso, the Mexican Peso,
the Honduran Lempira and the Swiss Franc. Nyrstar’s reporting currency is the Euro, zinc, lead and other metals are sold
throughout the world principally in U.S. Dollars, while Nyrstar's costs are primarily in Euros, Australian Dollars, Canadian
Dollars, U.S. Dollars, Peruvian Sols, Chilean Pesos, Mexican Pesos, Honduran Lempiras and Swiss Francs. As a result,
movement of the U.S. Dollar, the Australian Dollar, the Canadian Dollar, Peruvian Sol, Chilean Peso, Mexican Peso,
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Honduran Lempira, Swiss Franc or other currencies in which Nyrstar's costs are denominated against the Euro could
adversely affect Nyrstar's profitability and financial position.

Nyrstar has not entered and does not currently intend to enter into transactions that seek to hedge or mitigate its exposure to
exchange rate fluctuations, other than short-term hedging transactions to cover the timing risk between concentrate
purchases and sales of metal and to cover its exposure on fixed-price forward sales of metal to customers.

(e) Interest rate risk

Nyrstar incurs interest rate risk primarily on loans and borrowings. This risk is limited as a result of the interest rate on
borrowings such as convertible bond and fixed rate bond being fixed. Nyrstar's current borrowings are split b fixed
rate and floating rate basis. All variable interest rate loans and borrowings have EURIBOR or LIBOR basedfinterest rates.
The interest rate and terms of repayment of Nyrstar’'s loans are disclosed in note 34f. Changes in intere M impact
primary loans and borrowings by changing the levels of required interest payments.

Nyrstar's interest rate risk management policy is to limit the impact of adverse interest rate mo ents gh the use of

interest rate management tools. Interest rate risk is measured by maintaining a schedul cial assets, financial
liabilities and interest rate hedging instruments. At current Nyrstar's interest rate expo ing from interest bearing
borrowings is minimal due to the fact that the majority of its long term debt commit ithifixed interest rate. Nyrstar

has not entered into interest rate derivatives.
(f) Capital management

inin creditor and market confidence and so to
s the return on capital, which Nyrstar defines as
interests.

The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to mai

sustain future development of the business. The board of direct

profit after tax divided by total shareholders’ equity, excluding non-comtr

The board of directors also monitors the level of divide

S

sharefolders, as dividends or otherwise, must be determined on the basis

dinary shareholders. Nyrstar’s dividend policy is to ensure

that whilst maintaining adequate cash flows for gro essful execution of its strategy, Nyrstar aims to maximize

total shareholder return through a combination of icé appreciation and dividends. Pursuant to Belgian law, the
financial statements. In accordance with Belgian company law, the
Company’s articles of association also regui e Company allocate each year at least 5% of its annual net profits to its
legal reserve, until the legal resegfe equa
factors, there can be no assurafiCe a

paid, their amount.

east 10% of the Company’s share capital. As a consequence of these
ether dividends or similar payments will be paid out in the future or, if they are

The Company has jshed xecutive Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) with a view to attracting, retaining and
enior management of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries. The key terms of the
t

e 32, with vesting terms aligned to the Company’s capital management policy.

motivating the e

LTIP are set ou low in

Neither tl me r any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
6.

rates

The prinCipal exchange rates used in the preparation of 2014 financial statements are (in EUR):

Annual average Year end
2014 2013 2014 2013
United States dollar 1.3285 1.3281 1.2141 1.3791
Australian dollar 1.4719 1.3777 1.4829 1.5423
Canadian dollar 1.4661 1.3684 1.4063 1.4671
Swiss franc 1.2146 1.2311 1.2024 1.2276
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7. Segment reporting

The Group’s operating segments (Metals Processing and Mining) reflect the approach of the Nyrstar Management
Committee (NMC) towards evaluating the financial performance and allocating resources to the Group’s operations. The
NMC has been identified as the chief operating decision making group. The NMC assesses the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of ‘Underlying EBITDA’.

‘Underlying EBITDA'’ is a non-IFRS measure of earnings, which is used internally by management to access the underlying

performance of Group’s operations and is reported by Nyrstar to provide greater understanding of the underlying business
performance of its operations. Underlying EBITDA excludes items related to restructuring expense, M&A related tzansaction
expense, material income or expense arising from embedded derivatives recognized under IAS 39: ‘Financial | ents:

Recognition and Measurement’ and other items arising from events or transactions that management conside
distinct from the ordinary activities of Nyrstar.

The components of gross profit are non-IFRS measures which are used internally by management and aré th lowing:

Mining‘'s Payable/ free metal contribution is the metal price received for the payable f the primary metal

contained in concentrate before it is further processed by a smelter.

Smelting’'s Payable/free metal contribution is the value of the difference received b h ount of metal that is paid

for in a concentrate and the total zinc recovered from the sale by a smelter.

Treatment charges are the fees charged for the processing of primary (€@nc t@8s) and secondary raw materials for the
production of metal which is a positive gross profit element for the smelters eduction in the gross profit for mines.
e’ba

Smelters’ premiums Contribution is the premium charged on top{of s@ LME price for the sales of refined zinc and lead

metals.

By-products are secondary products obtained in the, %ducing zinc or lead and include primarily sulphuric acid,
silver, gold, indium, copper and cadmium. Q
Other are other costs and revenues associal melting or mining operations that do not relate to the above categories.

The ‘Metals processing’ segment comp of Group’s smelting operations. The ‘Mining’ segment comprises of the

Group’s mining operations and t ng agreement with the Talvivaara mine (Finland). ‘Other & Eliminations’

contains corporate activities wella e eliminations of the intra-group transactions including any unrealised profits

resulting from intercompar‘% tio
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Metals Other and

For the twelve months ended 31 Dec 2014, EUR million Processing Mining eliminations Total
Revenue from external customers 2,718.0 80.8 - 2,798.8
Inter-segment revenue 0.7 464.7 (465.4) -
Total segment revenue 2,718.7 545.5 (465.4) 2,798.8
Payable metal / free metal contribution 252.1 373.4 (2.9) 623.6
Treatment charges 367.4 (84.0) 0.6 284.0
Premiums 152.8 - 0.6 153.4
By-products 194.3 165.1 - 359.4
Other (98.3) (25.7) 3.7) (127.7)
Gross Profit 868.3 428.8 (4.4) 1,292.7
Employee expenses (207.7) (140.9) (62.3) (410.9)
Energy expenses (226.5)* (51.0) (0.1) (277.6)
Other expenses / income (160.4) (167.6) (32.1) (360.1)
Direct operating costs (594.6) (359.5) (94.5) (1,048.6)
Non-operating and other** (34.4) 17.4 53.3 36.3
Underlying EBITDA 239.3 86.7 (45.6) 280.4
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation (257.4)
M&A related transaction expense (0.2)
Restructuring expense (5.3)
Impairment loss (net) (9.2)
Embedded derivatives 0.4
Gain on the disposal of equity accounted investees 1.0
Net finance expense (107.6)
Income tax benefit 8.1
Loss for the period (89.8)
Capital expenditure C (180.0) (207.9) (6.1) (294.0)
* Net of EUR 12.9 million refund of a portion of charges related ti h power transmission tariff for the period 2000 to 2011.
** Including a gain of EUR 42.9 million from the settlement 0 Morado silver stream.

>
S
&
>
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Metals Other and
For the twelve months ended 31 Dec 2013, EUR million Processing Mining eliminations Total
Revenue from external customers 2,740.5 83.0 - 2,8235
Inter-segment revenue (49.1) 387.9 (338.8) -
Total segment revenue 2,691.4 470.9 (338.8)
Payable metal / free metal contribution 244.3 335.3 1.1
Treatment charges 337.0 (76.1) -
Premiums 127.2 - 0.1
By-products 215.3 172.6 -
Other (110.8) 13.1 (7.9)
Gross Profit 813.0 444.9 (6.7)
Employee expenses (207.1) (139.8) (44.4)
Energy expenses (271.6) (48.7) (¢
Other expenses / income (197.2) (169.4)
Direct operating costs (675.9) (357.9) (79.1) (1,112.9)
Non-operating and other 11.8 (8.7) 4 46.3
Underlying EBITDA 148.9 78. 42.6) 184.6

Depreciation, depletion and amortisation

M&A related transaction expense
Restructuring expense
Impairment loss

Embedded derivatives

Net finance expense

(1.7)
;) (18.5)

(20.1)
V (9.3)

(220.1)

(99.2)

Income tax benefit (11.1)
Loss for the period (195.4)
Capital expenditure (\/ 5.7) (96.6) (7.1) (199.4)
Geographical information Q%

(a) Revenues from external customers

EUR million 2014 2013
Belgium 327.1 183.0
Rest of Europe 1,004.0 1,072.5
Americas 379.4 370.0
Australia 616.2 799.5
Asia 436.1 373.3
Other 36.0 25.2
Total 2,798.8 2,8235
The reVegnue ation above is based on the location (shipping address) of the customer.

Sa ch individual customer (group of customers under the common control) of the Group did not exceed 10% with the

excep of sales to Glencore International plc, Umicore NV/SA and Noble Group Ltd, which accounted for 24.9% (2013:
38.1%), 10.5% (2013: 9.3%) and 12.4% (2013: 0.0%) respectively, of the total Group’s sales, reported in the Metals

Processing segment.
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(b) Non-current assets

EUR million 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013
Belgium 228.9 239.6
Rest of Europe 516.1 492.4
North America 438.0 417.8
Central America (incl Mexico) 481.1 428.5
South America 184.1 167.8
Australia 332.9 260.0
Total 2,181.1 2,006.1

Non-current assets for this purpose consist of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets andrchase
interests. %

8. Acquisition of business

There were no acquisitions for the twelve months ended 31 December 2014.
2013 \%

Acquisition of subsidiary: ERAS Metal AS

On 4 December 2013, Nyrstar acquired 100% interest in ERAS Met@l’AS (* , the owner of a fuming plant in Hoyanger,

Norway. In line with Nyrstar's strategy, the acquisition of Eras ides opportunity to process alternate valuable feed
materials such as Nyrstar smelters’ residues and ponds.

As at 31 December 2013, the accounting for the acqu
acquisition. In 2014, the acquisition accounting was ¢ @‘

s done on a provisional basis due to the timing of the
ithin the one year measurement period as follows:

Provisional fair
values on
acquisition as
@ previously Fair value Fair values on

EUR million reported adjustments acquisition
Property, plant and equipfen 7.3 0.2 7.5
Inventories 1.0 - 1.0
Trade receivable % 0.6 - 0.6
Cash and ca iyale 0.1 - 0.1
Provisions (1.5) - (1.5)
Loans an wings (1.8) - (1.8)
Tr, afRgd othgr payables (2.8) - (2.8)
Netui ifiable assets and liabilities 29 0.2 3.1
Consi tion paid, satisfied in cash 2.9 0.2 3.1
Cash acquired 0.1 - 0.1
Net cash outflow 2.8 0.2 3.0

The amounts of revenue and profit since the acquisition date included in the consolidated income statement for the reporting
period ended 31 December 2013 was EUR 0.2 million and EUR (0.2) million respectively. If the acquisition had occurred on
1 January 2013, management estimates that consolidated revenue and the consolidated profit for the year ended 31 Dec
2013 would have been EUR 9.2 million higher and EUR 3.2 million lower respectively.
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9. M&A related transaction expense

Merger and acquisition (M&A) related expense include the acquisition and disposal related direct transaction costs (e.g.
advisory, accounting, tax, legal or valuation fees paid to external parties). The M&A related transaction expense in the 2014
income statement amounts to EUR 0.2 million (2013: EUR 1.7 million). In 2014, there are no costs related to successfully

completed acquisitions (2013: EUR 0.5 million) see Note 8.

10. Employee benefits expense

EUR million 2014 13
Wages and salaries (369.8) b (349.9)
Compulsory social security contributions (25.1) (23.9)
Contributions to defined contribution plans (5.0) (4.6)
Expenses related to defined benefit plans (63 (7.7)
Equity and cash settled share based payment transactions, incl. social security 4.7) (5.2)
Total employee benefits expense (410.9) (391.3)
N 4
11. Finance income and expense
EUR million 2014 2013
Interest income 2.1 0.9
Total finance income 2.1 0.9
Interest expense (86.3) (67.4)
Unwind of discount in provisions (12.0) (11.0)
Other finance charges (15.6) (21.2)
Total finance expense (113.9) (99.5)
Net foreign exchange gain / (los 4.2 (0.6)
Net finance expense % (107.6) (99.2)
12. Income tax %
(a) Income tax iséd in the income statement
EUR millign 2014 2013
Cgrrent | tax expense (25.0) (18.7)
D come tax benefit 33.1 7.6
Total me tax benefit / (expense) 8.1 (11.1)
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(b) Reconciliation of effective tax rate

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax
rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as follows:

EUR million 2014 2013
Loss before income tax (97.9) (184.3)
Tax at aggregated weighted average tax rate 51.3 46.1
Aggregated weighted average income tax rate 52.4% 25.0%
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income:

Non-deductible amounts (9.8) \ -5)
(Non-recognition) / recognition of tax losses and temporary differences (9.7) 6.2
Overprovision for previous years 11 0.9
Unrecoverable withholding tax (4.2) / (6.1)
Net adjustment to deferred tax balances due to tax rate change in foreign jurisdiction (19.6) (3.4)
Foreign exchange differences 1 5.3 (2.1)
Other (6.3) (4.2)
Total income tax benefit / (expense) 8.1 (11.2)
Effective income tax rate 8.3% -6.0%
The change in the aggregate weighted average income tax rate compare ar ended 31 December 2013 is due to

the variation in the weight of subsidiaries’ profits.

Nyrstar recognised an income tax expense for the year ended 3 mber 2014 of EUR 8.1 million representing an
effective income tax rate of 8.3% (for the year ended 31 Bgcem 2013: -6.0%). The tax rate is impacted by losses
incurred by the Group for the year ended 31 Decem hich no tax benefit has been recognised and the change
of tax rates in Chile, Mexico and Peru.

(c) Income tax recognised directly in oth Nprehensive income

EUR million 2014 2013
Income tax (expense) recogni (3.8) (4.3)
Income tax benefit / (expense 25 (3.1)
Total income tax recog (2.3) (7.4)
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(d) Recognised deferred income tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities consist of temporary differences attributable to:

EUR million 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013
Assets:

Employee benefits 27.0 19.6
Provisions 42.5 39.7
Property, plant and equipment - 6.0
Payables / receivables - 7.5
Tax losses carried forward 182.3 5.3
Other 11.3 .6
Total 263.1 216.7
Set off of tax (131.6) (96.1)
Deferred tax assets 131.5 / 120.6
Liabilities:

Embedded derivatives 1 - (6.8)
Property, plant and equipment (284.4) (258.0)
Payables / receivables (1.6) (3.7
Other (3.6) (1.8)
Total (289.6) (270.3)
Set off of tax 131.6 96.1
Deferred tax liabilities (158.0) (174.2)
Deferred tax - net (26.5) (53.6)
Income statement:

Employee benefits 5.0 (8.4)
Provisions Q 29 6.5
Property, plant and equipment (32.2) (62.1)
Payables / receivables (1.5) (4.4)
Tax losses carried forward 47.3 68.6
Embedded derivatives 10.6 2.9
Other 1.0 4.5
Total 33.1 7.6
Reconciliation of defer t

As at 1 Jan (53.6) (65.5)
Deferred incom bafiefi 33.1 7.6
Recognised i | (1.3) (7.4)
Provision f a result (3.9) 15.7
Currency tion effects (0.8) (4.0)
As at 3d De (26.5) (53.6)

EUR 1485 million (31 December 2013: EUR 66.0 million) of the net deferred tax assets on tax losses carried forward arise
in entities that have been loss making in 2014 and 2013. In evaluating whether it is probable that taxable profits will be
earned in future accounting periods, all available evidence was considered. These forecasts are consistent with those
prepared and used internally for business planning and impairment testing purposes. Following this evaluation, it was
determined there would be sufficient taxable income generated to realise the benefit of the deferred tax assets.
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(e) Unrecognised deductible temporary differences and tax losses

Net deductible Tax loss Net deductible Tax loss
temporary carry  Total Dec temporary carry Total Dec
EUR million differences forward 31, 2014 differences forward 31, 2013
No expiration date 173.0 293.1 466.1 164.0 281.9 445.9
Total 173.0 293.1 466.1 164.0 281.9 4459

(f) Unremitted earnings

As at 31 December 2014, unremitted earnings of EUR 736.5 million (31 December 2013: EUR 540.0 milli
retained by subsidiaries and associates for reinvestment. No provision is made for income taxes that

the distribution of such earnings.

(9) Tax audit %
Nyrstar periodically assesses its liabilities and contingencies for all tax years open to g i%ﬁ n the latest information
ou

available. For those matters where it is probable that an adjustment will be made, @ orded its best estimate of
these tax liabilities, including related interest charges and penalties. The final o eyof taX examinations may result in a
materially different outcome compared to the recorded tax liabilities and contiige
Belgium, Nyrstar Belgium NV has challenged an assessment by the ta: ion relating to the non-deductibility of
interest expenses incurred in the year ended 31 December 2012. star ubstantial defence and any material tax
charge, including late interest and penalties, are unlikely to be in

13. Other expense
EUR million Q 2014 2013

part of tax dispute procedures in

Stock movement conversion costs 2.3 3.9
Other tax expense (12.2) (8.5)
Travel expense (8.7) (9.8)
Operating lease (15.7) (14.0)

(9.5) (8.2)

Insurance expense

Royalties (6.5) (7.0)
Communication expense (4.0) (4.5)
IT costs (2.2) 1.3)
Memberships/subsc (2.3) .7
Training (2.4) .7
Other 2.9 (10.5)
Total ot ns (58.2) (63.3)
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Mining Cyclical
Land and Plant and properties and Under  maintenance
EUR million Note buildings equipment  development construction and other Total
Cost 181.2 1,699.8 1,087.5 161.2 165.7 3,295.4
Accumulated depreciation and (40.4) (895.3) (349.3) - (93.1) (1,378.1)
impairment
Carrying amounts 140.8 804.5 738.2 161.2 72.6 1,917.3
As at 1 Jan 2014 134.5 807.9 666.1 95.9 67.1 1,771.5
Additions 25 50.3 18.1 194.8 25.4 291.1
Restoration provision
adjustments 28 - - (7.2) - - (7.2)
Transfers 4.4 61.5 57.6 (140.1) 9.1 (7.5)
Disposals (0.5) (2.2) > (0.4) (0.1) (3.2)
Depreciation expense (7.2) (140.2) (68.8) = (31.3) (247.5)
Impairment 16 - - - - - -
Currency translation effects 7.1 27.2 72.4 11.0 2.4 1201
As at 31 Dec 2014 140.8 804.5 738.2 161.2 72.6 1,917.3
Mining Cyclical
EUR million Note Lar_\d ‘and qunt and properties Un(_jer maintenance Total
buildings equipment tion
developm and other
Cost 152.4 1,525.9 95.9 162.2 2,852.6
Accu_mulated depreciation and (17.9) (718.0) ) (95.1) (1,081.1)
impairment
Carrying amounts 134.5 807. 6.1 95.9 67.1 1,771.5
As at 1 Jan 2013 151.7 727.4 82.2 61.0 1,730.2
Acqm_red in business ) 3 ) ) ) 73
combination
Additions 2.2 6.0 16.0 115.2 18.7 198.1
Restoration provision 28 ) 217 ) ) 217
adjustments
Transfers 2 34.5 58.6 (96.7) 18.1 (5.9)
Disposals (0. 1.2) - - - (1.5)
Depreciation expense 20) (112.3) (60.1) - (27.6) (212.0)
Impairment 6 20.8 166.1 (57.4) 4.6 (0.3) 133.8
Currency translation effects (7.5) (40.4) (40.1) (9.4) (2.8) (100.2)
As at 31 Dec 2013 134.5 807.9 666.1 95.9 67.1 1,771.5

The carrying am

ty, plant and equipment accounted for as finance lease assets at 31 December 2014 is

EUR 2.1 million).
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Emission and  Software and

EUR million Note Goodwill  carbon rights other Total
Cost s 1.8 36.6 38.4
Accumulated amortisation and impairment > (0.4) (24.0) (24.4)
Carrying amounts = 1.4 12.6 14.0
As at 1 Jan 2014 = 2.1 8.2 10.3
Additions* s 1.8 1.8 3.6
Transfers s > 7.5 7.5
Disposals s (2.6) - (2.6)
Amortisation expense = = (5.3) (5.3)
Impairment 16 - = - -
Currency translation effects = 0.1 0.4 0.5
As at 31 Dec 2014 - 14 12.6 14.0
* EUR 0.7 million relate to non-cash recognition of emission and carbon rights. < K)
Software and

EUR million Note other Total
Cost 26.5 29.0
Accumulated amortisation and impairment (18.3) (18.7)

8.2 10.3

Carrying amounts

As at 1 Jan 2013 124.9 1.1 7.4 133.4

Additions* - 23.3 0.8 24.1

Transfers Q - - 5.9 5.9
16

Disposals - (21.7) - (21.7)
Amortisation expense - - (5.3) (5.3)
Impairment (118.2) - (0.4) (118.6)
Currency translation effects (6.7) (0.6) 0.2) (7.5)
As at 31 Dec 2013 - 2.1 8.2 10.3

ogfition of emission and carbon rights.

.2 million (100%) of its goodwill.

Duti yrstar made available to Talvivaara Sotkamo Limited (“Talvivaara”), a subsidiary of Talvivaara Mining
Comp Ic, a loan facility up to a maximum amount of EUR 20 million. Nyrstar shall make the facility available in several
tranches with the amount of each advance calculated with reference to a corresponding delivery by Talvivaara of zinc in
concentrate under the Agreement. On 6 November 2014, Talvivaara announced that it would enter into bankruptcy
proceedings and therefore recovering the cash flows drawn under the facility was unlikely. As at 31 December 2014, Nyrstar
recognised impairment losses of EUR 8.4 million equal to the full carrying value of the loan receivable under the facility.

In 2014 Nyrstar recognised impairment losses of EUR 0.7 million on Group’s non-core assets. These impairment losses
relate to investments in equity securities that has been valued at fair value with mark to market movements recognised in
other comprehensive income (“OCI”) for which market prices which indicated a significant decline in the market value of the
investment.
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2013
Impairment loss

In 2013 Nyrstar recognised pre-tax impairment charges on Nyrstar's Mining assets of EUR 202.6 million, impairment
reversals related to Nyrstar's Metals Processing assets of EUR 207.4 million and impairment charges on non-core
operations of the Group of EUR 24.9 million resulting in a net impairment loss of EUR 20.1 million.

The allocation of the impairment charges for the period to individual assets, cash generating units and operating segments is
outlined below:

in EUR million whereof
Impairment Property,
(loss) /

plant and
reversal equipment Goodwill Invesimen Other
Peruvian mines (74.7) (51.8) (12.1) (10.8)
Campo Morado (89.8) - -
Langlois (19.2) N - -
Myra Falls (7.6) - -
El Toqui (6.5) - -
El Mochito (4.8) - -
Mining (202.6) - (10.8)
Port Pirie 58.5 - -
Balen 148.9 o 128.9 - - -
Metals processing 207.4 | A4 - - -
Investments in equity accounted investees (12.0) - - (10.6) (1.4)
Investments in equity securities (12.9) N - - (12.9) -
Other non-core assets of the Group ! (24.9) ) N - - (23.5) (1.4)
Total \ (20.1) 133.8 (118.2) (23.5) (12.2)
(note 14) (note 15) (note 17, 18)
! Other non-core assets of the Group llo to operating segments and are included in Other and eliminations in Note 7

Impairment testing f etals processing operations

mined on the basis of fair value less cost to sell (FVLCS) for each operation. The FVLCS
ing and Metals Processing operations were determined as the present value of the estimated

Recoverable val
recoverable r
future ca (e sed in real terms) expected to arise from the continued use of the assets (life of asset), including
reasonable fgrégast expansion prospects and using assumptions that an independent market participant would take into
ac
th
of the
13 years. For the smelters 18 years of cash flow forecasts were projected with a terminal value included in year 19, with

t.{hesea)\cash flows were discounted using a real after-tax discount rate that reflected current market assessments of

lue of money and the risks specific to the operation. The FVLCS measurement represents in its entirety a Level 3
alue hierarchy. Management projected the cash flows over the expected life of the mines, which varied from 6 to

growth rate of 1% included in the determination of the terminal value.

The key assumptions underlying the FVLCS were forecast commodity prices, foreign exchange rates and treatment charges,
discount rates, production levels and capital and operating costs.

Commodity price and foreign exchange rate forecasts were developed based on externally available forecasts by market
commentators. The prices used in the impairment assessment varied in accordance with the year the sale was expected to
occur with long term prices starting in 2020. The ranges of prices used are outlined in the table below:
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Low High Long term
Commodity prices (USD)
Zinc (per tonne) 2,100 2,960 2,640
Lead (per tonne) 2,180 2,390 2,180
Copper (per tonne) 6,500 6,970 6,970
Gold (per ounce) 1,330 1,400 1,400
Silver (per ounce) 22.50 24.20 24.20
Foreign exchange rates (versus Euro)
United States dollar 1.23 1.30 1.26
Australian dollar 1.46 1.58 1.58

Treatment charge assumptions are determined by reference to benchmark treatment charges and his tr ent
charge rates as a proportion of the associated metal price and range from 7% to 13% of the underlyin ice.
Discount rates are determined using a weighted average cost of capital methodology on an oferation ific basis. The
discount rates applied for operations with allocated goodwill and/or impairment charges/rev outlined in the table
below: <

% Discount rate
Peruvian mines ; 9.30%
Campo Morado 8.50%
El Toqui 8.00%
El Mochito 11.20%
Myra Falls 7.80%

Langlois 7.80%
Port Pirie 10.00%
Balen 5.30%

Production levels and capital and operating

re rmined based on approved budgets and forecasts with greater
weight given to historical results unlessgdefi plans are in place for capital projects which are expected to have a
significant, favourable effect on the operatign. In'Stich circumstances, expenditures associated with the capital project are

incorporated into the FVLCS mod

Impairment charges relat in erations

Based on the results nt testing at 31 December 2013, the Group has recorded impairment losses related to its

mining operations 02.6 million. The key events which led to the declines in the recoverable values of the
mining operatiofig a

Morado, s '

e impacts of lower precious metal prices. The impairment tests resulted in the full impairment of Nyrstar's

previ re sed goodwill.
Re%f impairment at Balen and Port Pirie

In 2013 Nyrstar prepared recoverable value estimates for all Metals Processing assets. As a result of these recoverable

associated impairment losses were primarily the introduction of the Mexican mining tax at Campo

of ghe operations at Corricancha and Puccarajo in Peru without current plans to fully restart these
operation

value estimates, Nyrstar reversed impairment charges previously recognised in the year ended 31 December 2008 in
connection with the Balen Smelter (EUR 148.9 million) and the Port Pirie Smelter (EUR 58.5 million). In each case, the
impairment reversal was after adjusting for accumulated amortisation which would have been recorded had the 2008
impairments not been recorded.

The reversal of impairment at the Balen Smelter was driven by the continuous, sustained improvements in operating results
at the Balen Smelter since 2008 particularly in relation to zinc recovery rates and energy costs which combined with the
favourable zinc price outlook provide objective evidence that the recoverable amounts of the assets in Balen exceed their
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carrying value after reversal of the 2008 impairment charge. The reversal of impairment at the Port Pirie Smelter is due to
the planned Port Pirie Transformation Project, a capital expansion plan which will significantly change the nature of the
operating capabilities of the Port Pirie Smelter from a primary lead smelter to a world class, multi-metals recovery facility
increasing the cash generating ability of Port Pirie. The recoverable value estimate for Port Pirie incorporates all capital
expenditure associated with the project and the discount rate applied includes a premium for construction risks. Based on
the results of the impairment testing the recoverable amounts of the assets in Port Pirie exceed their carrying value after
reversal of the 2008 impairment charge.

Other non-core assets of the Group

In 2013 Nyrstar recognised impairment losses of EUR 24.9 million on Group’s non-core assets. The majo hese
impairment losses relate to investments in equity securities that has been valued at fair value with to ket

movements recognised in other comprehensive income (“OCI”) for which market prices which indicated a sigqificaht decline
in the market value of the investment (EUR 12.9 million) and investments in equity accounted inv

nated under
FVLCS using discounted cash flow models (EUR 10.6 million).

17. Investments in equity accounted investees C
1
EUR million Owner 31Dec2014 31 Dec 2013
201 0

Genesis Alloys (Ningbo) Ltd * 0% - -
Foehl China Co. Ltd * 6 1 50% - 2.0
Ironbark Zinc Ltd 22.1% / 26.5% 15.7 16.5
Other 49% / 49% 0.1 0.1
Total 15.8 18.6
! Impairment losses totalling EUR 10.6 million were recorded nAgction With Genesis Alloys (Ningbo) Ltd. and Foehl China Co. Ltd

during the year ended 31 December 2013, refer to note 16

In May 2014 Nyrstar sold its entire 50% sharggi, Foe a Co. Ltd., a Chinese company specialising in zinc die casting
i

of jtS"entire 50% share in Genesis Alloys (Ningbo) Ltd., a Chinese company

ceeds of USD 0.7 million (EUR 0.5 million) resulting in a gain on disposal of

for cash proceeds of EUR 2.8 million resulti in on disposal of EUR 0.6 million.

In October 2014 Nyrstar completed

specialising in zinc alloy producti 0
EUR 0.4 million.

Summary financial informati ty accounted investees, adjusted for the percentage ownership held by the Group, is
as follows: < E

Non-current Current Non-current
urrent assets assets liabilities liabilities Revenues  (Loss) / profit
As 1.7 59.9 (0.4) = 0.2 (0.4)
AS at 6.4 65.3 (0.9) (0.2) 17.6 0.8

The fair value (based on the quoted bid prices in an active market, a Level 1 measurement) of Nyrstar's share of Ironbark
Zinc Ltd as of 31 December 2014 is EUR 5.3 million (2013: 3.8 million).
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18. Investments in equity securities

EUR million 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013
Herencia Resources Ltd * 0.6 1.2
Qualified Environmental Trust 17.6 16.3
Exeltium SAS 4.2 4.2
Other * 5.8 5.8
Total 28.2 27.5

! Impairment losses totalling EUR 0.7 million were recorded in connection with Henencia Resources Ltd. and other investments i

securities during the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: EUR 12.9 million), refer to note 16.
o Mc sin an
r% company and

All investments in equity securities are measured at level 1 under the fair value measurements using q
active market (refer to note 34g for further explanation), with the exception of Exeltium SAS, which |
carried at cost.

19. Zinc purchase interest

In February 2010, Nyrstar acquired 1.25 million tonnes of zinc in concentrate for (EUR 242.6 million) from

Talvivaara Sotkamo Limited (“Operating Company”), a member of the Talvivaar. ny Plc group (“Talvivaara” or
“Parent Company”) to be delivered over a number of years (the “Zinc §tre reement”). The Zinc Streaming
Agreement is guaranteed by the Parent Company. As at 31 Decemberg201 million tonnes of zinc in concentrate

(2013: 1.154 million tonnes) remain to be delivered to Nyrstar.

The asset is depleted through the income statement on the unit ctign basis as the underlying tonnes are delivered to
Nyrstar.
EUR million 2014 2013
As at 1 Jan 224.3 237.2
Depletion (4.6) (2.8)
Currency translation effects 30.1 (10.1)
As at 31 Dec 249.8 224.3

The operations of the Opera were suspended in 2013 and during November 2014 the Operating Company

announced that it had applie bafkruptcy under the Finnish Bankruptcy Act. Under the Finnish Bankruptcy Act the
e”)jean void the Zinc Streaming Agreement which would result in Nyrstar becoming a second
ranked creditor to ompany’s estate. To the date of the financial statements, the Trustee has not voided the

Zinc Streaming Agre,

urréitly running a sales process to sell the assets of the Operating Company (the “Proposed
Transdegti tar has entered into a binding agreement with one of the potential purchasers (the “Potential Purchaser”)

Transaction. The implementation of the binding agreement between Nyrstar and Potential Purchaser will result in the Zinc
Streaming Agreement being modified to effectively include an upfront holiday whereby Nyrstar will purchase the zinc in
concentrate at market price during the initial ramp up period of the operations of the Operating Company and a reduction in
the percentage of production to which the reduced payment terms per the original Zinc Streaming Agreement will apply.

Nyrstar has assessed the recoverability of the Zinc Streaming Agreement on the basis that the Proposed Transaction will be
successfully completed by the Potential Purchaser. This assessment takes into account the proposed modified terms and
concludes that the EUR 249.8 million carrying value of the Zinc Streaming Agreement is recoverable.
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Considerable uncertainties exist as to the outcome of the Proposed Transaction. It is possible the Potential Purchaser will
not successfully complete the Proposed Transaction resulting in the carrying value of the Zinc Streaming Agreement being
impaired. If such an impairment was recognised in the 31 December 2014 financial results, the reported loss for the year of
EUR 89.8 million would increase by EUR 197.4 million (being the tax effected carrying value of the zinc purchase interest of
EUR 249.8 million). The reported loss for the year would then be EUR 287.2 million and total equity would be EUR 957.7
million.

20. Other financial assets and liabilities

EUR million 31 Dec 2014 3lPec 2013
Restricted cash © 28.3 \37

Held to maturity @
31 5

Total non-current financial assets 10.4
Commaodity contracts - fair value hedges @ 15.7 9.1
Commaodity contracts - cash flow hedges © 1 8.0 4.8
Foreign exchange contracts - held for trading @ 13.4 11.5
Foreign exchange contracts - cash flow hedge 1.4 -
Embedded derivatives ® 1.1 1.2
Total current financial assets 39.6 26.6
Embedded derivatives ® 0.1 3.9
Total non-current financial liabilities 0.1 3.9

Total current financial liabilities

Commaodity contracts - fair value hedges @ 3.8 14.4
Foreign exchange contracts - held for tradlng % 23.9 6.0
Embedded derivatives © 0.2 0.4

i ial liabiliti Q 27.9 20.8

(a) Instruments used by Nyrstar to ma ENE re to currency and commodity price risk exposures

The fair value of derivatives (com
asset of EUR 11.9 million (31 D
position.

Carrying amounts of the

disclosed in note 2 @ s

tively.

posure to currency and commodity risk related to other financial assets and liabilities is disclosed in note 34.
(b) Embedded derivatives

The change in fair value on the effective portion of the Group’s embedded derivatives during the year ended
31 December 2014 with a pre-tax positive impact of EUR 3.7 million (31 December 2013: negative impact of
EUR 9.0 million) was recognised in the cash flow hedge reserve whilst changes in fair value on the ineffective portion and
amortisation of the swap’s fair value at inception of EUR 0.4 million (31 December 2013: EUR 9.3 million) were recognised in
the income statement within energy expense.
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(c) Restricted cash

The restricted cash balance of EUR 28.3 million as at 31 December 2014 (31 December 2013: EUR 7.6 million) represents
amounts placed on deposit to cover certain reclamation costs.

(d) Held to maturity

The held to maturity instrument is a government bond that is required to be maintained as a security deposit.
(e) Commodity contracts — cash flow hedges

The amount of EUR 8.0 million represents a remaining balance of the commodity contracts — cash flow hedges
settled at 31 December 2014. The fair value of the effective portion of commodity contracts - cash flo

December 2014 is a pre-tax gain of EUR 12.3 million (31 December 2013: 32.7 million). As the commodi n

flow hedges have been 100% hedge effective, the gain of EUR 12.3 million has been recognised 4 flow hedge
reserve.

(f) Foreign exchange contracts — cash flow hedges

The amount of EUR 1.4 million represents a remaining balance of the foreign exchangelcontr. — cash flow hedges that
were not settled at 31 December 2014. The fair value of the effective portion of, i xchiange contracts - cash flow
hedges at 31 December 2014 is a pre-tax gain of EUR 3.0 million (31 December 201 WAs, the foreign exchange contracts
- cash-flow hedges have been 100% hedge effective, the gain of EUR 3.0 million recognised in the cash flow hedge
reserve.

21. Inventories

EUR million o @ 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013

Raw materials 255.6 183.4
Work in progress 231.2 219.8
Finished goods 61.5 38.5

Stores and consumables 88.8 73.9

Fair value adjustment* Q (11.5) -
Total inventories 625.6 515.6
* As the Group applies hedge acc% ibed in note 3g, the hedged items of inventories are adjusted for fair value movements.

56



nyrstar

22. Other assets and liabilities

EUR million 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013
Deferred debt issuance cost - non-current ® 1.8 2.6
Other - non-current 0.7 0.6
Total other non-current assets 25 3.2
Fair value of underlying hedged risk - current @ 1.0 -
Total other current assets 1.0 -
Commodity delivery obligation - non-current © - .6
Total other non-current liabilities - 5.6
Fair value of underlying hedged risk - current © - 3.9
Commodity delivery obligation - current © 0.4 / 24
Total other current liabilities 0.4 6.3

(a) Fair value of underlying hedged risk

The fair value of fixed forward sales contracts (the underlying hedged items) re
net liability of EUR 3.9 million), being offset by an amount of EUR 1.0 milli
value of hedging derivatives on these fixed forward sales contracts i

asset of EUR 1.0 million (2013:
: R 1.0 million) representing the fair
in note 20 other financial assets and
liabilities.

(b) Deferred debt issuance cost

Transaction cost of the SCTF credit facility (see note 27) ortised of EUR 1.8 million (2013: EUR 2.6 million).

(c) Other liabilities

the silver, Silver Wheaton pai
the spot price at the time o

Silver Yhe iability in 2014 amounts to EUR 1.7 million (2013: EUR 2.6 million).
In r 2014 Nyrstar reached an agreement with Silver Wheaton to settle the existing silver streaming agreement related
to Ca orado. Under the settlement, the streaming agreement delivery obligation was brought to an end on 31 December

2014. In return, Nyrstar agreed to make a payment of USD 25 million to Silver Wheaton by 31 January 2015 and will grant
Silver Wheaton a five year right of first refusal on any silver streaming transaction in relation to a Nyrstar group property. In its
31 December 2014 consolidated financial statements, Nyrstar recognised a gain on settlement of the silver streaming
agreement of EUR 42.9 million (USD 52.1 million). The gain has been recognised in other income.
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23. Trade and other receivables

EUR million 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013
Trade receivables 174.9 163.6
Less provision for receivables (2.4) (2.1)
Net trade receivables 172.5 161.5
Other receivables 28.9 134
Total trade and other receivables 201.4 174.9
The movement in the provision for receivables is detailed in the table below: < :

EUR million 2014 \\ 13

A J

As at 1 Jan 2.1 Q 2.5
Payments - / (0.1)
Additions / (reversals) 0.1 (0.3)
Currency translation effects 0.2 -
As at 31 Dec 2.4 2.1

v
The Group’s exposure to currency and liquidity risk related to trade and other rec eSis disclosed in note 34.

24. Cash and cash equivalents

EUR million 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013

Cash at bank and on hand b 398.0 101.6
Short-term bank deposits 100.5 190.7
Total cash and cash equivalents Q 498.5 292.3

EUR 2.5 million of the cash and cash equiv balance was restricted at 31 December 2013. This cash was released to
Nyrstar on 21 January 2014.

Cash at bank and on hand and she sits earned a combined weighted average interest rate of 0.6% for calendar
year 2014 (2013: 0.1% per angim)

The Group’s exposure % risk and a sensitivity analysis for financial assets and liabilities are disclosed in note 34.
25. Capital %
Share cafyjt share premium

In tember 2014 Nyrstar issued 170,022,544 new shares as the result of the completion of a capital increase in the
a 251.6 million within the framework of a rights offering which was approved by the extraordinary general
share! rs’ meeting of 4 December 2014. The associated costs of the capital increase amounted to EUR 8.6 million.

As at 31 December 2014 the number of issued ordinary shares is 340,045,088 (31 December 2013: 170,022,544) with a par
value of EUR 0.10 (2013: EUR 2.18). The reduction in par value is due to decisions taken at the extraordinary shareholders’
meeting on 20 August 2014 to reduce the Company’s share capital through an allocation of the amount of the share capital
reduction to the share premium account. The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from
time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All shares rank equally with regard to the
Company’s residual assets.
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Apart from the issued share capital, Nyrstar NV has outstanding convertible bonds issued in 2013 in an aggregate principal
amount of EUR 120.0 million. Based on a conversion price of EUR 3.71 per share, if all convertible bonds are converted, a
maximum of 32,345,013 new shares are to be issued.

Distribution to shareholders (capital decrease)

The Board of Directors has decided not to propose to shareholders a distribution for the financial year 2014 and 2013,
reflecting its commitment to support the opportunities identified by the company’s growth plans.

The extraordinary shareholders’ meeting on 23 May 2013 approved a distribution of EUR 0.16 per share, amounting to a

total distribution of EUR 27.2 million (net of treasury shares EUR 24.0 million) The distribution was structured

capital

reduction with reimbursement of paid-up capital.

N
<O

Issued shares 2014 2013
Shares outstanding 1 327,381,031 154,684,113
Treasury shares 12,664,057 15,338,431
As at 31 Dec 340,045,088 170,022,544
Movement in shares outstanding \v 2014 2013
\*
As at 1 Jan 154,684,113 162,676,718
Capital increase 170,022,544 -
Purchases of treasury shares (29,778) (13,245,757)
Sales of treasury shares 2,500,000 4,765,225
Employee shared based payment plan 204,152 487,927
As at 31 Dec 327,381,031 154,684,113
Movement in treasury shares Note 2014 2013
As at 1 Jan 15,338,431 7,345,826
Purchases 26 29,778 13,245,757
Sales 26 (2,500,000) (4,765,225)
Employee shared based paymgnt 32 (204,152) (487,927)
As at 31 Dec 12,664,057 15,338,431
Disclosure of t harého s’ structure
The Group? r holders (holding greater than 3% of the Group’s outstanding shares) based on notifications of
significant Shat€holdings available as at 31 December 2014 were:
SRare me Shareholder's address Dat_e_ Of. N'umb'er of in %
notification voting rights
Urion Holdings (Malta) Ltd Leicester Court, Suite 2, Edgar Bernard Str., Gzira, Malta 12 Nov 2014 52,035,694.0 15.30%
Umicore S.A. / N.V. Broekstraat 31, 1000 Brussels, Belgium 23 Mar 2011  10,503,712.0 3.09%
Total 62,539,406.0 18.39%
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outstanding shares) based on notifications of

Shareholder's name Shareholder's address Dat_e_ Of. N'umb'er of in %
notification voting rights
BlackRock Group 33 King William Street, London EC4R 9AS, UK 13 Dec 2012 6,505,459.0 3.83%
Umicore S.A./ N.V. Broekstraat 31, 1000 Brussels, Belgium 23 Mar 2011 5,251,856.0 3.09%
Total 11,757,315.0 6.92%
26. Reserves
Reconciliation of movement in reserves N\
«
Reverse Cash flow
Treasury  Translation acquisition hedge Convertible Investments
EUR million shares reserves reserve reserve bond reserve Total
As at 1 Jan 2014 (33.4) (20.5) (265.4) 19.1 24.5 1.2 (274.5)
Gains on cash flow hedges - - - 15.3 - - 15.3
Foreign currency translation
differences - 109.0 - - - - 109.0
Change in fair value of investments
in equity securities - - - - - 0.7 0.7
Change in par value (note 25) 26.4 - - - - - 26.4
(Acquisition) / distribution of
treasury shares 5.8 - - - - - 5.8
As at 31 Dec 2014 1.2) 88.5 (265.4) 34.4 245 1.9 (117.3)
Q Reverse Cash flow
easury  Translation acquisition hedge Convertible Investments

EUR million shares reserves reserve reserve bond reserve Total
As at 1 Jan 2013 (17.2) 69.5 (265.4) 0.3) 8.8 (2.9) (207.5)
Gains on cag e - - - 194 - - 194

- (90.0) - - - - (90.0)

- - - . . 4.1 4.1

3.2 - - - - - 3.2

(Acquisition) / distribution of
treasury shares (19.4) - - - - - (19.4)
Convertible bond - - - - 15.7 - 15.7
As at 31 Dec 2013 (33.4) (20.5) (265.4) 19.1 245 1.2 (274.5)
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The treasury shares reserve comprises the par value of the Company’s share held by the Group. As at 31 December 2014,
the Group held a total of 12,664,057 of the Company’s shares (31 December 2013: 15,338,431).

In 2014 Nyrstar sold 2,500,000 shares (2013: 3,065,000) to a financial institution and to the participants in relation with the
LESOP (note 32), for a cash consideration of EUR 4.9 million (2013: EUR 5.3 million).

In September 2014 Nyrstar sold the subscription rights related of its treasury shares held at the time of the capital increase.
The consideration received of EUR 7.7 million was recognised directly in accumulated losses.

During 2014 the Group settled its LTIP Grants and Deferred Shares Awards. A total of 204,152 shares (2013:¢487% ere
allocated to the employees as a part of this settlement.

At 16 April 2013, the Group acquired off-market, Glencore International AG’s (“Glencore”) enti areholding
(13,245,757 shares) in Nyrstar for EUR 3.39 per share, for a total consideration of EUR 44.9 million. Fu ore Glencore
agreed to compensate Nyrstar with a termination fee of EUR 44.9 million in relation to endinghi mo Grade Off-take

agreement by 31 December 2013 for the sale and marketing of commodity grade zinc m roduced By Nyrstar, within the
European Union. The termination fee has been recognised in other income.

At 1 October 2013 Nyrstar entered a strategic offtake and marketing agree t e Group Limited ("Noble") to
market and sell a significant portion of commodity grade zinc metal produ pean smelters. Noble agreed to
acquire from Nyrstar's treasury shareholding 1,700,225 common sharesji representing 1% of total shares for a
price of EUR 3.76 per share, for a total cash consideration of EUR 6.4gmillio

27. Loans and borrowings

This note provides information about the contractual ter Group’s interest-bearing loans and borrowings, which are
measured at amortised cost. For more information a oup’s exposure to interest rate, foreign currency and liquidity
risks see note 34.

as at as at
EUR million 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013
Convertible bonds 106.0 102.9
Fixed rate bonds 751.3 734.2
SCTF Credit Facility - -
Unsecured bank loans 3.0 1.8
Finance lease liabiliti 1.9 1.0
Total non-curren @ rowings 862.2 839.9
Convertible ber - 118.5
Fixed rate 1 : 72.6 -
Unsecure ik loans - 25
Fi iabilities 2.0 0.9
TQtal ans and borrowings 74.6 121.9
Total s and borrowings 936.8 961.8

Convertible bonds

In September 2013 Nyrstar issued an EUR 120 million 4.25% convertible bonds listed on the Frankfurt Open Market
(Freiverkehr), due September 2018.

The bonds are convertible at the option of the holder, at any time from 31 December 2013 until 15 September 2018 (ten
days prior to final maturity date being 25 September 2018), or if the bonds are called by the Group for redemption prior to the
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final maturity date, until the seventh day before the date fixed for redemption. The conversion price as at 31 December 2014
is EUR 3.71 per share.

The bonds consist of a liability component and an equity component. The fair values of the liability component
(EUR 102.3 million) and the equity component (EUR 15.7 million) were determined, using the residual method, at issuance
of the bonds. The liability component is measured at amortised cost at an effective interest rate of 8.03% per annum.

The bonds have been issued at 100% of their principal amount and have a coupon of 4.25% per annum, payable semi-
annually in arrears.

In July 2014 Nyrstar repaid its EUR 120 million 7% convertible bonds listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange'§ Euro MTF
market, due July 2014.

The bonds were convertible at the option of the holder, at any time from 1 September 2009 until 1 J n days prior
flhal maturity

to final maturity date being 10 July 2014), or if the bonds were called by the Group for redemption pfior
ber 2013 was

date, until the seventh day before the date fixed for redemption. The conversion price as 31 Dece
EUR 5.91 per share.
The bonds consisted of a liability component and an equity component. At 31 Dece 13 the fair values of the liability

component (EUR 108.7 million) and the equity component (EUR 8.8 million) were , using the residual method, at
issuance of the bonds. The liability component were measured at amortised co ameffective interest rate of 9.09% per
annum.
The bonds were issued at 100% of their principal amount and had @ coup 7% per annum, payable semi-annually in
arrears.

In 2014 and 2013 no convertible bonds were converted in ordinary shargs of the company.
SCTF credit facility

SCTF credit facility is a secured multi-currency revolvi tured commodity trade finance credit facility with a limit of EUR
! !

at EURIBOR plus a margin of 1.85%.

400 million. The facility was refinanced mid mber 2012 and has a maturity of four years (with run-off period during

the fourth year leading to a maturity per 2016). The facility includes an accordion to increase its size to

EUR 750 million on a pre-approved b

Funds drawn under the facility Jg€ar inte

Directly attributable transagtio ve been deducted at initial recognition and are amortized over the term of the credit
facility. Transaction ot yethamortized at the balance sheet date amount to EUR 1.8 million (31 December 2013:
EUR 2.6 million).
facility were wii

e re disclosed under other assets (see note 22). In 2012 the costs of the previous SCTF credit

at time of renewal, leading to finance charges of EUR 3.0 million.

Borrowin thisfacility are secured by Nyrstar’s inventories and receivables. In addition to standard representations,
warrantigs al ertakings, including restrictions on mergers and disposals of assets, the facility provides for financial
coven ich are linked to certain balance sheet ratios.

Fixed bonds

In September 2014, the Company issued an EUR 350 million 8.5% Senior Notes listed on the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange’s Euro MTF market, due in 2019. The 2019 Notes were priced at 98.018%.

At 31 December 2014, the Company has three outstanding fixed rate bonds; 5.5% fixed rate bond with an original face value
of EUR 225 million (maturity: April 2015), 5.375% fixed rate bond with an original face value of EUR 525 million (maturity:
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April 2016) and 8.5% fixed rate bond with original face value of EUR 350 million (maturity: September 2019). Directly
attributable transaction costs have been deducted at initial recognition and are amortised over the term of the bonds.

In 2014, Nyrstar bought back own bonds, through a public tender offering, with a face value of EUR 147.4 million for the
5.5% bond and EUR 100.0 million for the 5.375% bond for total cash consideration of EUR 253.4 million.

In 2013, Nyrstar bought back own bonds with a face value of EUR 5 million for the 5.5% bond and EUR 10 million for the
5.375% bond for total cash consideration of EUR 14.6 million.

Terms and debt repayment schedule

Terms and conditions of outstanding loans were as follows:
31 Dec 2014 @13

. Nominal  Year of Face Carrying Carrying
EUR million Currency interest rate  maturity value amount %e amount
Convertible bonds* EUR 7.00% 2014 - - 119.9 118.5
Fixed rate bonds EUR 5.50% 2015 72.6 72.6 220.0 219.9
Fixed rate bonds EUR 5.40% 2016 415.0 414.7 515.0 514.3
Convertible bonds** EUR 4.25% 2018 120.0 106.0 120.0 102.9
Fixed rate bonds EUR 8.50% 2019 350.0 336.6 - -
Total interest bearing liabilities 957.6 929.9 974.9 955.6

\‘ ’
* The Company may, at any time on or after 10 July 2012, redeem \the vertible bonds together with accrued but unpaid

interest, if on not less than 20 out 30 days consecutive déealing d the volume weighted average price of the shares
exceeds 150% of the conversion price.

** The Company may, at any time on or after 16 O 2016, redeem the convertible bonds together with accrued but
unpaid interest, if on not less than 20 out S CO utive dealing days, the volume weighted average price of the
shares exceeds 130% of the conversion e.

Finance leases

EUR million 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013

Within 1 year 2.0 0.9
Between 2 2.0 1.1
Total un nted minimum lease payments 4.0 2.0
Less; amounts,representing finance lease charges 0.1 0.1
Pres of minimum lease payments 3.9 1.9
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Restoration,
rehabilitation and

EUR million Note decommissioning  Restructuring Other Total
As at 1 Jan 2014 188.2 5.2 32.3 225.7
Payments (14.4) (4.9) (3.6) (22.9)
Additions / (reversals) (3.7) 2.0 6.3 4.6
PPE asset adjustment 14 (7.2) - - (7.2)
Transfers (0.2) - - (0.2)
Unwind of discount 11 11.8 - 0.2 12.0
Currency translation effects 11.8 0.1 3.0 14.9
As at 31 Dec 2014 186.3 2.4 38.2 226.9
Whereof current 5.2 2.4 4.4 12.0
Whereof non-current 181.1 - 33.8 214.9

o

Restoration,

rehabilitation and
EUR million Note decommissioning tr Other Total
As at 1 Jan 2013 1795 5.1 50.2 234.8
Acquired in business combination - - 15
Payments (7.2) (5.2) (25.4)
Additions / (reversals) 7.6 (10.6) (2.1)
PPE asset adjustment 14 - - 21.7
Transfers - 0.1 (0.1)
Unwind of discount 11 - 0.2 11.0
Currency translation effects (0.3) (2.4) (15.7)
As at 31 Dec 2013 5.2 32.3 225.7
Whereof current 7.7 5.2 4.2 171

Whereof non-current 180.5 - 28.1 208.6
Restoration, rehabilitation a% sioning

Restoration, rehabilitati %o missioning work on the projects provided for is estimated to occur progressively over
the next 115 years ajority will be used within the next 15 years. The provision is discounted using a current

market based -ta ount rate and the unwinding of the discount is included in interest expense. Refer to note 4 for a
discussion ificamt estimations and assumptions applied in the measurement of this provision.

Restructur

In r incurred restructuring costs of EUR 5.3 million (2013: EUR 18.5 million). The remaining provision of
EUR llion (31 December 2013: EUR 5.2 million) is mainly related to the implementation of the restructuring measures

that are expected to be finalised during 2015.
Other

Other provisions primarily relate to workers compensation benefits, legal claims and other liabilities. The current portion of
these costs is expected to be utilised in the next 12 months and the non-current portion of these costs is expected to be
utilised over a weighted average life of 2 years (2013: 2 years). The estimates may vary as a result of changes in cost
estimates and timing of the costs to be incurred.
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29. Employee benefits

EUR million 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013
Long service leave 2.6 2.3
Retirement plans 72.9 58.8
Other 11.3 9.9
Total non-current employee provisions 86.8 71.0
Annual leave and long service leave 26.4 29.3
Other 32.0 3.8
Total current employee provisions 58.4 33.1
Total employee provisions 145.2 104.1

enefits on retirement,

Retirement and post-retirement plans
Nyrstar participates in a number of superannuation and retirement benefit plans. The pll% b
in

disablement, death, retrenchment or withdrawal from service, the principal types of ump sum defined benefits
and lump sum defined contribution benefits.

Defined contribution plans V

The Group is required to contribute a specified percentage of payrall cost retirement benefit schemes to fund the
benefits. The only responsibility of the Group is to make the spgci tribltions, with the exception of Belgium where
legislation requires a minimum rate of return, currently 3.25% \on loyer contributions and 3.75% on employee

contributions. The latter, which apply as an average over the\gmploy entire career, may be modified by Royal Decree in
which case the new rate(s) apply to both the accumulate tributions and the future contributions as from the date of

hrough group insurances, strictly speaking qualify as defined
tribution plans. This approach is justified considering the IASB

has not yet determined an appropriate acca oIicy or such contribution-based plans as well as the uncertainty with
m B

accumulated assets at the balance C
the Belgian defined contributiof plaps
reserves with the insuran ny.
amount to EUR 10.7 milli

e contribution to these plans amount to EUR 0.7 million and accumulated assets
Employees of Nygstar e are members of a multi-employer Metal and Electricity industry defined benefit pension plan
(PME). PME e toVprovide the necessary information for defined benefit accounting to be applied and consequently
the PME b
the coptributi required according to the funding plan of the PME and cannot held liable for any deficits or contributions

the minimum guaranteed reserves were 100% covered by actual accumulated

accounted for as a defined contribution plan. The entity’s obligations are limited to the payment of

fro, heg participating companies.
The total expense for defined contribution plans recognised in the consolidated income statement is EUR 5.0 million.
Defined benefit plans

The Group sponsors defined benefit plans as described below. All defined benefit plans are externally funded, either through
a collective insurance contract or through a self-administered pension fund legally separated from the entity. All plans
comply with local regulatory frameworks and minimum funding requirements and have been reviewed as at 31 December
2014. Furthermore the Group is responsible for the administration and governance of the defined benefit plans in Belgium,
Switzerland, the US and Canada. The plan assets do not include direct investments in the Group’s own financial instruments
nor in property occupied by or used by the companies of the Group.
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The defined benefit plans also include the so-called cash balance plans. The cash balance plans, sponsored by the Belgian
and Swiss entities, account for about 13% of the total defined benefit obligation value as at 31 December 2014 (2013: 13%)

and are valued on the basis of the Projected Unit Credit Method.

The defined benefit plans expose the sponsoring company to actuarial risks such as investment risk, interest rate risk, salary

risk, inflation risk and longevity risk. The medical benefit plans are further exposed to medical cost inflation risk. The

possible impact of changes in these risks has been illustrated by a sensitivity analysis which is further detailed below.

Death in service and disability risks are in most countries insured with an external (re)insurance company.

2014 can be split as follows:

Based on geographical location of the sponsoring entities, the recognised retirement benefit obligations as aKce ber

-
‘ Average

EUR million 31 Dec 2014 duration
Euro zone: (28.6) 11.2 years
Nyrstar Budel BV Excedent Pension Plan

Nyrstar Belgium SA/NV: Staff Old Defined Benefit plan funded through pension fdRd,

Staff Cash Balance Plan, Staff Complementary Savings Plan, Staff Insur

Defined Benefit plan, Staff "appointements continués", Salaried Employee

Defined Benefit Plan, Salaried Employees "appointements continués"

Nyrstar NV: Staff Cash Balance Plan, Staff Complementary Savings Pla

Nyrstar France Régime d'Indemnités de Fin de Carriére and Régimegiu Mu

Nyrstar France Mutuelle (medical benefit plan)

USA: (21.6) 14.1 years
Nyrstar Clarksville Inc:  Hourly Employees' Pensio 2\, Salaried Employees’

Retirement Plan, Pension Plan for Bargaining Unit {€1/JCZ Pension Plan

for Bargaining Unit Employees, Supplemental Exec ent Plan

Nyrstar Clarksville Inc. Post Retirement Medical and Life Insurance Plan

(medical benefit plan)

Canada: (15.8) 11.5 years
Nyrstar Myra Falls Ltd.: Hourly-Paid o Pension Plan, Thirty-Year Retirement

Supplement and Voluntary Early'retire Allowance

Nyrstar Myra Falls Ltd.: S on Wost-retirement benefits plan (medical benefit

plan)

Switzerland: (6.9) 18.7 years
Nyrstar Sales & Magketing AG: Pension Plan Staff and Pension Plan Staff NMC

funded thro elv Group Foundation

Nyrstar i Int; tional AG: Pension Plan funded through the Helvetia Group

Foundatio

TQtal (72.9) 12.6 years

The total value of the medical benefit plans, included in the retirement benefit obligations is EUR 29.4 million (2013: EUR

24.8 million).
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The amounts recognised on the statement of financial position have been determined as follows:

EUR million 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013
Present value of funded obligations 145.9 117.3
Present value of unfunded obligations 42.8 38.2
Total present value of obligations 188.7 155.5
Fair value of plan assets (115.9) (97.1)
Total deficit 72.8 58.4
Limitation on recognition of surplus due to asset ceiling 0.1 0.4
Total recognised retirement benefit obligations 72.9 \ 8
Plan assets comprise: (\
EUR million 31 Dec 2014 /31 Dec 2013
Cash 1 1.7 2.9
Equity instruments 48.9 38.7
Debt instruments 33.3 30.5
Other assets 32.0 25.0
Total plan assets 115.9 97.1
Mutual funds consist of equity funds, fixed-income funds and mixed inve ts funds including both equity and debt
instruments. All assets, except for the insurance contracts h tedyprices in active markets. The fair value of the

insurance contracts corresponds either to the present value of thé segur ture benefits (Netherlands) or to the capitalized

value of the paid contributions at the contractually guaranteed%gsural rate (other countries).

The changes in the present value of the defined ben ions are as follows:
EUR million 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013
Defined benefit obligations at start of pe
155.5 164.0
Current service cost 6.6 6.9
Interest cost 5.9 54
Remeasurement (gains)/I
changes in demographic assumptions 0.8 3.3
om changes in financial assumptions 245 (8.0)
ing from changes in experience 4.7) (1.0)
sesWdue to exchange rate movements 8.9 (7.9)
e plans by patrticipants 1.2 1.2
(9.3) (8.7)
including plan amendment or curtailment) (0.4) 0.8
Al s, taxes and social securities (0.3) (0.5)
nefit obligations at end of period 188.7 155.5

During 2014 there were no curtailments nor settlements. The reported past service cost is mainly the result of a decrease of

the pension amount and increase of the pension age in the Netherlands due to a plan amendment in 2014.
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The changes in the present value of plan assets are as follows:

EUR million 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013
Fair value of plan assets at start of period 97.1 91.4
Interest Income 3.8 3.1
Remeasurement gains/(losses):
9.4 3.0

Return on plan assets excluding interest income recognised in net interest expense

Actuarial gains/(losses) due to exchange rate movements 5.2 (5.0)
Contribution paid into the plans by employer 6.8 0.4
Contribution paid into the plans by participants 1.2 \ 2
Benefits paid by the plans (7.3) (6.5)
Admin expenses, taxes and social securities (0.3) (0.5)
Fair value of plan assets at end of period 115.9 b 97.1
The expense recognised in the income statement is as follows: c

Q )}

EUR million 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013
Service cost:

Current service cost, including admin fees, taxes and social securities (6.6) (6.9)

Past service cost 0.4 (0.8)
Net interest expense (2.2) (2.3)
Components of defined benefit costs included in income stateme (8.3) (10.0)
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability:

The return on plan assets (excluding amounts inclye 9.4 3.0

Actuarial gains and (losses) arising from changes ) (0.8) (3.3)

Actuarial gains and (losses) arising from cha (24.5) 8.0

Actuarial gains and (losses) arising from éxperie i 4.7 1.0

Adjustments for restrictions on the defi 0.3 (0.2)

Actuarial gains/(losses) due to ex 0.3 0.7
Components of defined benefit (10.6) 9.2

Total of components of defi enefit cost (18.9) (0.8)
Principal actuarial pti

The principal actaariaPas ptions used at the reporting date are as follows:

EUR mil 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013
Dij te (fange; weighted average in %) 0.6-3.8;27 1.3-47;3.8
E uture salary increases (range; weighted average in %) 15-25;23 15-25;23
Expe nflation rate (range; weighted average in %) 2.0;2.0 20-23;21
Initial trend rate (range; weighted average in %) 20-75;6.1 2.0-8.0;5.5
Ultimate trend rate (range; weighted average in %) 2.0-6.0;45 2.0-5.0;3.8
Years until ultimate is reached 0-5;3,7 0-6;3.3

Multiple discount rates have been used in accordance with the regions as indicated in the table above. The discount rates
have been determined by reference to high quality corporate bonds with a similar duration as the weighted average duration
of the concerned plans for the EURO zone, USA and Canada. As there is no deep market for AA corporate bonds with the
required term in Switzerland, discount rates have been determined by reference to government bond rates.
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Future salary increase assumptions reflect the Groups’ expectations and HR policy for the next few years.

A single inflation rate assumption of 2% (2013: 2%) has been used for the EURO zone corresponding to the target inflation
rate of the European Central Bank.

The medical cost trend rate assumptions have been determined based on industry standards and survey data with
consideration for actual plan experience.

Mortality assumptions are based on the latest available standard mortality tables for the individual countries concerned.
These tables imply expected future lifetimes (in years) for employees aged 65 as at the 31 December 2014 of 18 to 24 for
males (2013: 18 to 24) and 21 to 28 (2013: 21 to 28) for females. The assumptions for each country are reviewe@ each year

and are adjusted where necessary to reflect changes in fund experience and actuarial recommendations. If [icable) the
longevity risk is covered by using appropriate prospective mortality rates. Q
Sensitivity analysis %

The significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation n diScussed earlier in

this note. The table below shows the sensitivity analysis on the effect on the defined benefit obligati reasonable positive
changes in the most significant actuarial assumptions used. Note that the sensitivity is done per assumption (where
the other significant assumptions were held constant):

EUR million 31 Dec 2014
Discount rate -0.5% 13.5
Discount rate +0.5% (12.2)
Expected future salary increase - 0.5% (1.0)

1.0

Expected future salary increase + 0.5%

Expected inflation rate - 0.5% (0.4)
Expected inflation rate + 0.5% 0.4
Medical cost trend rate -1.0% Q (4.2)

Medical cost trend rate +1.0% 5.4
Life expectancy - 1 year 5.2
Life expectancy + 1 year (5.2)
Expected contributions 2015 Q
The Group expects to ma illion contributions to post-employment defined benefit plans for the year ending 31
December 2015.
30. Trade r payables
31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013
536.8 435.6
73.7 50.4
e and other payables 610.5 486.0

The Group’s exposure to currency and liquidity risk related to trade and other payables is disclosed in note 34.
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31. Deferred income

EUR million 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013
Current 425.3 294.7
Non-current 89.5 -
Total deferred income 514.8 294.7

Deferred income consists of payments received by the Company from customers for future physical deliveries of metal
production that are expected to be settled in normal course of business.

In October 2014, Nyrstar entered into a forward sale of a portion of the future incremental silver production f Port
Pirie smelter for a gross upfront payment of approximately AUD 120 million (net proceeds of EUR 85.2 milli I¥ order to
fund the second component of the funding package of the redevelopment of its smelter in Port Pirie. The dSale i§for a
term of five years. Under the terms of the forward sale, the majority of the silver volumes will be delj er a’defined
delivery schedule post commissioning of the redeveloped Port Pirie smelter from 2016 until the endiof ilver prices

have been hedged with counterparties.

ximately USD 124.6
gual instalments over a
erlying silver is physically

In December 2014 Nyrstar entered into silver prepay agreements, under which Nyrstar r,
million (EUR 102.7 million) prepayment and agreed to physically deliver 9.4 million oz o
six month period ending June 2015. The silver prepayments are amortised into reve
delivered. As at 31 December 2014, no silver has been delivered.

In June 2013, Nyrstar entered into a silver prepay agreement, under i r received a USD 195.8 million
(EUR 148.1 million) prepayment and agreed to physically deliver 8.75 milli silver in equal instalments over a ten
as the underlying silver was physically

under which Nyrstar received a USD 50 million
r 3.3 millién oz of silver in equal instalments over a six month
ised Into revenue as the underlying silver was physically

period ended June 2014. The silver prepayment wa:
delivered. As at 31 December 2013, no silver has be

of deferred income related to the silye agreement of EUR 1.8 million (2013: EUR 5.9 million) effectively offsets in
the income statement.

32. Share-based %
EUR million 2014 2013

ment expenses, including social security (4.7) (5.2)

as established an Executive Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP), a Leveraged Employee Stock Ownership
P) and a Deferred Share Award Plan (together referred to as the “Plans”) with a view to attracting, retaining and
motivating the employees and senior management of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries. In previous years
Nyrstar also had a Co-Investment Plan. The key terms of each Plan are disclosed below:

Long Term Incentive Plan

LTIP Grants 4 to 7 were granted between 2011 and 2014 in accordance with the rules and conditions of the Executive Long
Term Incentive Plan (LTIP). The table below summarises the details of the grants.
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Grant 2 Grant 3 Grant 4 Grant 5 Grant 6 Grant 7

Number of instruments granted , 53 359 604,407 1,149,398 2261628 2,270,961 5,121,113
at the grant date

Effective grant date 30 Jun 2009 30Jun 2010 30Jun 2011 30Jun2012 30Jun2013 5 Sep 2014

1 Jan 2009 1 Jan 2010 1Jan 2011 1 Jan 2012 1 Jan 2013 1 Jan 2014

Performance period to 31 Dec to 31 Dec to 31 Dec to 31 Dec to 31 Dec to 31 Dec

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Vesting date 31 Dec 2011 31 Dec 2012 31 Dec 2013 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2016

Settlement ® Share Share Share Share Share Share

Fair value at grant date (EUR 278 4.95 6.23 101 137 0.44

per share)”

* the fair value is the weighted average fair value for both performance measures: price ofz%ag% s explained
below

(a) Performance criteria

To ensure that the LTIP is aligned with maximizing shareholder returns, the boa t fwo performance conditions,
as been granted. For an award to
hange in a notional share price that is

which are weighted equally. For both performance conditions an equal number o

vest, Nyrstar's annual share price performance is measured relative to the i

based upon the historical performance of the price of zinc and the MSCI and Mining Index.

Shares are awarded to eligible employees to the extent that pr scaling thresholds for each of the performance
conditions are met and that the employee remains in service to vesti of the respective grant.

(b) Settlement

The board has the discretion to settle Grant 4,Gran @ t & and Grant 7 award in shares or cash. However it intends to
settle all plans in shares. As such, all LTIP pl e treated’as equity settled share based payments.
The significant inputs into the valuation giodelLf TIP plans granted in 2014 and 2013 are:

2014 2013
Dividend yield 0.0% 3.0%
Expected volatility - r shargjprice 45.0% 47.0%
Expected volatilit i 19.0% 24.0%
Expected volatifity - metals and mining index 18.0% 22.0%
Risk free i e 1.6% 1.3%
Share p nt date (in EUR) 2.44 3.30
Expedted forfeiture rate 0.0% 0.0%
V iommodel used Monte Carlo Monte Carlo

The e ted volatilities are based on the historic volatility during the period prior to the grant date (that is equivalent to the
expected life of the award, subject to historical data remaining relevant). The performance conditions are both market-
related and were accounted for in calculating the fair value of the awards.
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The following table sets out the movements in the number of equity instruments granted during the period in relation to the
LTIP plans:

Grant 2 Grant 3 Grant 4 Grant 5 Grant 6 Grant 7 Total
As at 1 Jan 2014 - - 1,019,930 1,903,273 2,111,346 - 5,034,549
Initial allocation 5
Sep 2014 - - - - - 5,121,113 5,121,113
Dilutive impact /
adjustment - - - 553,380 669,321 1,364,350 2,587,051
Forfeitures - - - (2,626,335) (421,558) (625,798) (3,673,691)
Additions - - - 169,682 467,428 - 637,110
Expired - - (944,359) - - - (944,359)
Settlements - - (75,571) - - - (75,571)
As at 31 Dec 2014 - - - - 2,826,537 5,859,665 8,686,202

v

Grant 2 Grant 3 Grant 4 Grant 5 Grant Total
As at 1 Jan 2013 88,871 770,960 1,053,901 2,104,239 4,017,971
,270,961

Initial allocation 30

Jun 2013 - - - 2,270,961
Forfeitures - - (148,144) 525,7 (229,174) (903,033)
Additions 11,668 4,448 114,17 749 69,559 524,597
Expired - (388,020) - - (388,020)
Settlements (100,539) (387,388) - - - (487,927)
As at 31 Dec 2013 - - 1, ,903,273 2,111,346 5,034,549
In 2014 LTIP Grant 4 was settled in cash, whereas in IP Grant 2 and 3 were settled in shares.

In 2014 and 2013, certain employees wh '0 star during the year received LTIP awards under Grants 5 and 6. The

fair value of these rights amounted to for 2014 (2013: EUR 0.6 million). There have been no changes to the

terms and conditions of the grants.

Modifications to LTIP Grantsi3, %

No modifications were an during 2014.

As at 6 Februa (%ations were made to the performance conditions of Grants 3, 4 and 5. The modifications

resulted in t % f the 2012 zinc price performance from the performance hurdle for all three grants, when
ve

determini LTIP achievement and lowering of the MSCI performance hurdles for future years for Grants 4

and 5.

ards have been valued, using a consistent valuation methodology to that disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2012. The incremental increase in the fair value of the awards
amounted to EUR 1.8 million and will be recognised over the remaining vesting period of the awards, starting from the
modification date. The total incremental fair value recognised in 2013 amounted to EUR 1.8 million. The modifications did
not change the number of outstanding awards as disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements as at 31
December 2012, however it resulted in the vesting of 389,928 Grant 3 awards.
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Management Committee Co-Investment Plan

A co-investment plan for the members of the NMC was approved by the annual general shareholders’ meeting held on
28 April 2010. The effective accounting grant date was 5 May 2010 and the conditions were assessed from the grant date till
15 July 2013, which was the vesting date. For each Nyrstar share that a member of the NMC purchased between
30 April 2010 and 28 June 2010, Nyrstar granted the respective participant on the vesting date, a number of additional
Nyrstar shares provided that (a) the participant was still employed by Nyrstar on the vesting date and (b) the participant was
still holding the co-investment shares on the vesting date. During the period between 30 April 2010 and 28 June 2010 the
members of the NMC purchased 190,000 co-investment shares.

In line with the resolution of the annual general shareholders meeting held at 27 April 2011 the Co-investme has
reflected the impact of the March 2011 rights issue by the Company. It was also agreed that additional 95,51 are the
Company subscribed for by the respective participants in the Co-Investment Plan are considered “Co-invé t res” for

purposes of the Co-Investment Plan. At 30 June 2011 an additional participant has purchased 25,00 participation
ms a

in the Co-investment plan. The terms and conditions of this participation were consistent with theger nditions of the
previous Co-investment Plan participations.

The number of matching shares was determined at three measurement dates, i.e. (a) 1 July 201 asurement Date 1), (b)
1 July 2012 (Measurement Date 2) and (c) 1 July 2013 (Measurement Date 3). T. Matching Shares was the
product of the total number of the Co-Investment Shares of the respective Partigi
measurement dates. The multiplier was set between zero (lowest multiplier

multiplier determined at the
highest multiplier) in conjunction
with pre-set price points, i.e. pre-set average closing prices of Nyrstar g any given full calendar week in the

measurement periods (refer to Corporate Governance statement for further
The weighted average fair value at the grant dates per share wa 4.

Movement of Co-Investment Shares:

2014 2013
As at 1 Jan - 348,000
Additions
Expired - (261,992)
Forfeitures - (86,008)
As at 31 Dec = -
No further Co-Investment §h een granted in 2012, 2013 or 2014. None of these Co-investment shares vested at
the vesting date 15 13 e performance conditions were not met. No shares out of this plan have therefore been

delivered to partigipa ir value of services received in return for the shares qualifying under the co-investment plan
i u

n
is based on tl e Of the awards granted which for financial year 2014 amounts to EUR nil (2013: EUR nil).

L ged Employee Stock Ownership Plan (LESOP)

In 201 e Board submitted to the general shareholder’'s meeting a proposal to provide a new remuneration component to
certain senior managers, including the management committee, called a LESOP. The LESOP would enable participants to
purchase shares of the Company at a discount of 20%, following which the shares would be subject to a holding period of
three years. For each share purchased by a participant with their personal contribution, a financial institution would provide
the participant with additional financing enabling them to purchase nine additional shares at such discount. The number of
shares that a participant could purchase with their personal contribution under the LESOP is capped. With respect to the
members of the Nyrstar Management Committee, the cap is set at 50,000 shares for each member. At the end of the holding
period, the participant will be required to transfer all shares purchased to the financial institution and will receive in return a
cash amount or a number of shares of the Company, the value of which equals their personal contribution in the LESOP and

a certain percentage of any increase in value of the shares over the lifetime of the LESOP.
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The 2013 LESOP was approved by the general shareholder’s meeting in April 2013. The first stage of the 2013 LESOP was
implemented in December 2013.

3,065,000 shares were granted, with an effective accounting grant date of 21 December 2013. The shares vested
immediately at grant date. The fair value at the grant date per share was EUR 0.10, resulting in the total fair value of EUR
0.3 million fully recognized in the financial year ended 31 December 2013.

On 30 April 2014, the Company’s general shareholders’ meeting approved and granted the board of directors the powers to
establish an annual leveraged employee stock ownership plan for the years 2014, 2015 and 2016 (respectively the “2014
LESOP”, the “2015 LESOP” and the “2016 LESOP”), whereby each LESOP (if established) must have the,following
features:

@) eligible participants can purchase Shares of the Company at a discount of 20%, wher Nr are
subject to a holding period of three years,
(i) eligible participants can purchase such Shares with their own personal contributions, or alter ely, with a

combination of personal contributions and an additional financing provided to the
whereby such leverage will however not exceed a one to nine ratio,
(iii) the eligible participants include the members of the Nyrstar management committee, as well as other
participants determined by the board of directors, and .
(iv) the number of Shares that an eligible participant can purchase witlnhis ogherpersonal contribution is capped,
whereby such number is determined by the board of directorsg(hot ot exceeding 50,000, as the case
may be, adjusted in case of a (reverse) stock split).

af cial institution,

The total number of Shares that can be purchased under each L amouRis to 6,000,000. The first stage of the 2014
LESOP was implemented in June 2014. 3,750,000 shares wer
2014. 2,500,000 shares vested immediately at grant date. TRe fair value

d, with an effective accounting grant date of 15 June
the grant date per share was EUR 0.11, resulting
ear ended 31 December 2014.

in the total fair value of EUR 0.3 million fully recognized imythe nci

The significant inputs into the valuation model for th n granted are:

2014 2013

Dividend yield 3.0% 3.0%

Risk free interest rate 0.5% 0.5%
Credit spread for a private indigid 5.0% 5.0%
Interest rate for borrowingfSecuri 0.5% 0.5%
Share price at grant 2.44 2.15
Valuation model u Monte Carlo Monte Carlo

The followi ets @ut the movements in the number of equity instruments granted during the period in relation to the
LESOP p

2014 2013
As at n - -
Initial allocation 3,750,000 3,065,000
Settlements (2,500,000) (3,065,000)
As at 31 Dec 1,250,000 -
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Deferred Share Awards or Phantom Awards - annual incentive plan (AIP)

On 24 April 2013, the Company’s general shareholders’ meeting granted the board of directors the power to pay out

entitlements to beneficiaries (including members of the management committee and directors, where applicable) under the
AIP in relation to the performance by such beneficiaries during the years 2012, 2013 and 2014 in the form of Shares of the
Company instead of cash, subject to the following terms:

(@) up to one third of the maximum AIP entitlement in relation to a performance year can be paid in the form of Shares
instead of cash;

(b) the Shares to be delivered as payment of an AIP entitlement are granted for no additional consideration payable by
the beneficiary concerned;

(c) the Shares to be delivered as payment of an AIP entitlement in relation to a relevant performan% will be
delivered in the second calendar year following the relevant performance year (i.e. early 2014 espect to the
AIP for performance year 2012, early 2015 with respect to the AIP for performance year 20 % 2016 with
respect to the AIP for performance year 2014), rather than in the beginning of the first ygar following,the respective

performance year (which is the case if the entitlements are paid out in cash), and
beneficiary is still employed by Nyrstar or its subsidiaries at that time.

The shareholders also approved that the Shares that are delivered as pay out of a nder the AIP are acquired
by the beneficiary concerned at the moment of delivery (and not at the expiry of ree§ear period following the grant).

The fair value of the service received in return for these Awards for fina 14 amounts to EUR 0.7 million (2013:
EUR 0.6 million).

33.

Loss per share

The basic loss per share is calculated as follows:

(a) Basic loss per share : %

EUR million 2014 2013

Loss attributable to ordinary shareh

(89.8) (195.4)

asic
Weighted average number of ordi eSy(basic, in million) ! 234.6 198.8
Loss per share (basic, in E (0.38) (0.98)
1) In relation to the rights offefing, rative earnings per share for 31 December 2013 have been restated to retroactively reflect the
i 0 S ISsu

impact of the September 4
weighted average numigé

. As the rights issue was offered at a discount (EUR 1.48) to market value (EUR 2.68), the
har standing for 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013 were adjusted in accordance with IAS 33
ent resulted in an increase in the weighted average shares outstanding, both basic and diluted, in 2014

up Mcurred a loss for the twelve months ended 31 December 2014, the diluted loss per share EUR 0.38 equals
er share (EUR 0.98 for the twelve months ended 31 December 2013). The convertible bonds have been

anti-dilutive for 2014 and 2013.
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In the normal course of business, Nyrstar is exposed to fluctuations in commodity prices and exchange rates, interest rate
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. In accordance with Nyrstar’s risk management policies, derivative financial instruments are
used to hedge exposures to commodity prices and exchange fluctuations, but may not be entered into for speculative
purposes.

(a) Credit risk

(i) Exposure to credit risk

Credit risk represents the loss that would be recognised if the counterparties to financial instruments fail o% as
contracted. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maxi e to

u
credit risk at the reporting date was: &

EUR million 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013
Trade and other receivables 1 201.4 174.9
Cash and cash equivalents 498.5 292.3
Commodity contracts used for hedging: assets 23.7 13.9
Embedded derivatives: assets 1.1 1.2
Foreign exchange contracts used for hedging: assets 1.4 -
Foreign exchange contracts used for trading: assets 134 115
Restricted cash 28.3 7.6
Held to maturity 3.2 2.8
Total 771.0 504.2

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and other recéivables e reporting date by geographic region was:

EUR million 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013

Euro-zone countries 76.0 58.6

Asia 44.0 38.5
United States 11.9 9.4
Other European countries 27.4 23.3
Other regions 42.1 45.1
Total % 201.4 174.9

The maximum expos@ k for trade and other receivables at the reporting date by type of customer was:

EUR million 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013

Wholesal 166.4 159.3
End-u cu 35.0 15.6
Total 201.4 174.9

76



(ii) Ageing analysis
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Trade and other receivables including ageing of trade and other receivables which are past due but not impaired at the

reporting date was:

EUR million 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013
Not past due 162.6 144.6
Past due 0-30 days 31.2

Past due 31-120 days

Past due 121 days — one year
More than one year

Total

Credit risk in trade receivables is also managed in the following ways:

e The Company has a duty to exercise reasonable care and prudence in granti
existing and potential customers. The Company takes all reasonable
minimize any losses arising from bad debts. The Company’s Cre
structure and systems put in place in order to efficiently and effeGh
granted to business partners.

e Payment terms can vary from 0 to 90 days, after the mont
the sale is a cash sale or a sale with an attached letter

e A risk assessment is undertaken before granti
have to be covered by other securities (i.e.

e If sales are covered by a letter of

institutions.
(iii) Banks and financial institutio

For banks and financial institutighs, o

2014

credit ing the payment terms.

mers a credit limit. Where no credit limit is

it, th

<

pendently rated parties with a minimum rating of ‘A’ are accepted.

18.8
7.0 3
o '\ :
0.5 0.7

174.9

@thhoding credit from

es its best endeavours to
anagement Policy describes the
anage the risks related to the credit

. Payment terms are dependent on whether

granted sales

, parent guarantee) and/or by documentary collection.

in principle be irrevocable, confirmed with approved financial
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(b) Liquidity risk management
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The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments and excluding the

impact of netting agreements:

Contract-

Carrying ual cash 6 months 6-12 5 years or
EUR million amount flows or less months 1-2years 2 -5 years more
Finance lease liabilities (3.9) (3.9) (1.6) (0.6) (0.6) (0.6) (0.5)
Loans and borrowings (932.9) (1,212.9) (122.2) (45.6) (472.7) (569.4) (3.0
Trade and other payables (610.5) (610.6) (603.4) (2.6) (1.4) (2.0) (2.2)
Commodity contracts — fair value ) . ) )
hedges (3.8) (3.8) (3.8)
Foreign exchange contracts — held i _ i i
for trading (23.9) (23.9) (23.9)
Embedded derivatives (0.3) (0.3) (0.2) (0.1) - - -
Total, 31 Dec 2014 (1,575.3) (1,855.4) (755.1) (48.9) (474.7) (571.0) (5.7)

Contract-

Carrying ual cash m@nt 6-12 5 years or
EUR million amount ofll months 1-2vyears 2-5years more
Finance lease liabilities 1.9 (0.4) (0.5) (0.8) (0.2) -
Loans and borrowings (959.9) ‘ : (49.8) (126.6) (267.5) (678.5) -
Trade and other payables (48 4 (480.4) (3.4) (1.1) (2.0) -
Commodity contracts — fair value ) . ) )
hedges . (14.4) (14.4)
Foreign exchange contracts — held ) . ) )
for trading i (6.0) (6.0)
Embedded derivatives (4.3) (4.3) (0.2) (0.2) (1.7) (2.2) -
Total, 31 Dec 2013 1,472.5) (1,634.9) (551.2) (130.7) (271.1) (681.9) -
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(c) Currency risk

Exposure to currency risk
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The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk was as follows based on notional amounts:

EUR million EUR USD AUD CAD Other Total
Trade and other receivables 91.7 78.7 13.8 5.7 11.5 201.4
Loans and borrowings (933.3) - (1.1) - (2.4) (936.8)
Trade and other payables (174.9) (319.6) (72.9) (16.2) (26.9) (610.5)
Gross balance sheet exposure (1,016.5) (240.9) (60.2) (10.5) (17.8) (1,345.9)
Foreign exchange contracts 524.6 (284.9) (117.9) (125.1) (5.8) 9.1)
Commodity contracts - 19.9 - - - 19.9
Net exposure, 31 Dec 2014 (491.9) (505.9) (178.1) (135.6) (23.6) (1,335.1)
»
EUR million EUR UsD Other Total
Trade and other receivables 62.7 85.6 19.7 174.9
Loans and borrowings (956.2) (2.6) (1.8) (961.8)
Trade and other payables (157.8) (172.9) (11.2) (79.6) (486.0)
Gross balance sheet exposure (1,051.3) (89.9) (9.8) (61.7) (1,272.9)
Foreign exchange contracts 412.3 (302. 0.7 (213.5) (1.2) 5.5
Commodity contracts - (0. - - - (0.5)
Net exposure, 31 Dec 2013 (639.0) (398.2) 50.5 (223.3) (62.9) (1,267.9)

Sensitivity analysis

Nyrstar's results are significantly affect
exchange rates are depicted in the foll

Full year 2013

ges in foreign exchange rates. Sensitivities to variations in foreign
hich sets out the estimated impact on Nyrstar's full year results and

equity (in EUR million).
F ar 2014
anfiual average
rate

Parameter annual average  Variable 2014 2013

rate
EUR /USD : g 1.329 1.328 +/-10% (107) /130 (103) /125
EUR / AUD 1.472 1.378 +/-10% 23/(28) 25/ (31)
EUR/C 1.215 1.231 +/-10% 4/ (5) 4/(5)
Th itivities were calculated by modelling Nyrstar's 2014 and 2013 underlying operating performance. Exchange
rates ased on an average value observed during that period and are varied in isolation to determine the impact on

Nyrstar's full year results and equity.

(d) Commodity price risk management

Nyrstar is exposed to commodity price volatility on commodity sales and raw materials purchased. Nyrstar may enter into
zinc, lead and silver futures and swap contracts to hedge certain forward fixed price sales to customers in order to achieve
the relevant metal price at the date that the transaction is settled. Nyrstar may enter into zinc, lead and silver futures and
swap contracts to more closely align the time at which the price for externally sourced concentrate purchases is set to the
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time at which the price for the sale of metal produced from that concentrate is set. These instruments are referred to as

‘metal at risk’ hedges and the terms of these contracts are normally between one and three months.

The following table sets out a summary of the notional value of derivative contracts hedging commaodity price risks at 31

December 2014.

Average 6 months or 6-12 12-18 more than

EUR million price in USD less months months 18 months Total
Zinc per tonne

Contracts purchased 2,202 (67.7) (13.2) - - (80.9)
Contracts sold 2,234 142.7 0.5 - - 143.2
Net position 75.0 (12.7) - - 62.3
Lead per tonne

Contracts purchased 1,878 (6.8) - - - (6.8)
Contracts sold 2,015 69.3 - - - 69.3
Net position 62.5 - - - 62.5
Silver per ounce

Contracts purchased - - - - - -
Contracts sold 16.5 88.5 - - - 88.5
Net position 88.5 - - - 88.5
Gold per ounce

Contracts purchased 1,193.9 (0.5) - - - (0.5)
Contracts sold 1,194.3 2.5 - - - 25
Net position 2.0 - - - 2.0
Copper per tonne

Contracts purchased - - - - - -
Contracts sold 6,669 14.7 - - - 14.7
Net position 14.7 - - - 14.7
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The following table sets out a summary of the notional value of derivative contracts hedging commodity price risks at 31

December 2013.

Average 6 months or 6-12 12 -18 more than
EUR million price in USD less months months 18 months Total
Zinc per tonne
Contracts purchased 1,962.0 (81.7) (9.0) - - (90.7)
Contracts sold 1,916.0 76.5 0.6 - - 77.1
Net position (5.2) (8.4) - - (13.6)
Lead per tonne %
Contracts purchased 2,252.0 (0.3) - - - (0.3)
Contracts sold 2,110.0 65.4 - - 65.4
Net position 65.1 - - - 65.1
Silver per ounce ( )
Contracts purchased 19.6 (8.0) - - - (8.0)
Contracts sold 20.6 96.7 - - - 96.7
Net position 88.7 - - 88.7
Gold per ounce
Contracts purchased 1,204.6 (0.8) - - - (0.8)
Contracts sold 1,252.3 4.9 - - - 4.9
Net position 1 - - - 4.1
Copper per tonne
Contracts purchased - - - - -
Contracts sold 7,208 .9 - - - 2.9
Net position Q 2.9 - - - 2.9
Sensitivity analysis %
Nyrstar's results are signifi ctedfby changes in metal prices and treatment charges (TC). Sensitivities to variations

in metal prices and treatment
full year results and

Paramet %

are depicted in the following table, which sets out the estimated impact on Nyrstar's

in EUR million).

Full year 2014
annual average

Full year 2013
annual average

price price Variable 2014 2013

$2,164 $1,909 +/-10% 76/ (72) 571 (53)

$2,096 $2,141 +/-10% 4/ (4) 4/ (4)

$19.1 $23.8 +/-10% 8/(8) 9/(9)

Zinc TC $223 $211 +/-10% 26 / (26) 231/ (23)
Lead TC $195 $213 +/-10% 4/ (4) 4/ (4)

The above sensitivities were calculated by modelling Nyrstar's 2014 and 2013 underlying operating performance. Metal
prices are based on an average value observed during that period and are varied in isolation to determine the impact on
Nyrstar's full year results and equity.
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(e) Financial Instruments by category
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Fair value
through Derivatives At
Loans and profit and Held to Available used for amortised
EUR million receivables loss maturity for sale hedging costs Total
Derivative financial instruments - 29.1 - - 10.5 - 39.6
Trade and other receivables excl
prepayments 201.4 - - - - - 201.4
Cash and cash equivalents 498.5 - - - - - 498.5
Restricted cash 28.3 - - - - - 28.3
Held to maturity - - 3.2 - - - 3.2
Loans and borrowings - - - - - - -
Investments in equity securities - - - 28.2 - - 28.2
Borrowings excl finance lease
liabilities - - - S = (932.9) (932.9)
Finance lease liabilities - - - - - (3.9 (3.9)
Derivative financial instruments - (27.7) - - (0.3) - (28.0)
Trade and other payables - - - - (610.5) (610.5)
Net position, 31 Dec 2014 728.2 14 3.2 28.2 10.2 (1,547.3) (776.1)
Fair value
through Derivatives At
Loans and profit and Available used for amortised
EUR million receivables loss atlrit for sale hedging costs Total
Derivative financial instruments - 2 - - 6.0 - 26.6
Trade and other receivables excl
prepayments 174.9 - - - - 174.9
Cash and cash equivalents 292.3 - - - - 292.3
Restricted cash - - - - - 7.6
Held to maturity - - 2.8 - - - 2.8
Investments in equity securities - - - 27.5 - - 27.5
Borrowings excl finance lease
liabilities - - - - (959.9) (959.9)
Finance lease liabilities - - - - - (1.9) (1.9)
Derivative financial instrume - (20.4) - - (4.3) - (24.7)
Trade and other payable - - - - - (486.0) (486.0)
Net position, 31 Dec Q 474.8 0.2 2.8 27.5 1.7 (1,447.8) (940.8)
Nyrstar H d into two electricity fixed price contracts, in the form of swaps, to reduce its exposure to the
electricity pficeSisk to which it is exposed. The contracts end in 2015 and 2017 respectively. The 2017 swaps have been

desi as ‘gualifying cash flow hedges.
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(f) Interest rate risk management

Nyrstar’s exposure to interest rate risk and along with sensitivity analysis on a change of 100 basis points in interest rates at
balance date on interest bearing assets and liabilities is set out below:

31 Dec 2014 Sensitivity analysis, in 100 bp

Interest rate Income statement Equity
EUR million Floating Fixed Total increase decrease increase decrease
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 498.5 - 498.5 5.0 1.2) 5.0 (1.2)
Restricted cash - 28.3 28.3 - - - -
Held to maturity - 3.2 3.2 - - - -
Financial liabilities:
Loan facility - (3.0) (3.0 - - - -
Borrowings - fixed rate bonds = (823.9) (823.9) - - - -
Borrowings - convertible bonds = (106.0) (106.0) - - - -
Finance lease liabilities - (3.9) (3.9) - - - -
Net interest bearing financial
assets / (liabilities) 498.5 (905.3) (406.8) 5.0 (1.2) 5.0 (1.2)

w\

31 Dec 2013 Sensitivity analysis, in 100 bp

Interest rage Income statement Equity
EUR million Floating Fixed tal __increase decrease increase decrease
Financial assets:

292.3 2.9 (0.3) 2.9 (0.3)

Cash and cash equivalents 29

Restricted cash 7.6 7.6 - - - -
Held to maturity 2.8 2.8 - - - -
Financial liabilities:

Loan facility - (4.3) (4.3) - - - -
Borrowings - fixed rate bo - (734.2) (734.2) - - - -
Borrowings - convertible bon - (221.4) (221.4) - - - -

Finance lease liabiliti - (1.9) (2.9) - - - -
Net interest beagihg i

assets / (liabilifes) 292.3 (951.4) (659.1) 2.9 (0.3) 2.9 (0.3)
Sensit% tions are based on closing cash balances. No negative interest rates are assumed.
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(g) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
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The carrying amount of all financial assets and liabilities recognised at amortised cost on the consolidated statement of

financial position approximate their fair value, with the exception of the fixed rate bonds of EUR 823.9 million (2013:
EUR 734.2 million) and the convertible bonds of EUR 106.0 million (2013: EUR 221.4 million), with fair values based on
quoted prices in active markets (Level 1 measurement), of EUR 843.0 million (2013: EUR 672.6 million), and

EUR 125.0 million (2013: EUR 211.4 million) respectively.

The following table presents the fair value measurements by level of the following fair value measurement hierarchy for

derivatives:

e quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1);

e inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liabil

indirectly (level 2); and

Q&ectly or
e inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (level 3).&

Y
iluEie Total as at
- technique (s)
EUR million and key input (s) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 31 Dec 2014
Commodity contracts — fair value hedges a - 15.7 - 15.7
Commodity contracts — cash flow hedges a - 8.0 - 8.0
Foreign exchange contracts — held for trading b - 134 - 134
Foreign exchange contracts — cash flow hedge b - 1.4 - 1.4
Embedded derivative c - 11 - 1.1
Total - 39.6 - 39.6
Commodity contracts — fair value hedges a - (3.8) - (3.8)
Foreign exchange contracts — held for trading b - (23.9) - (23.9)
Embedded derivative c - (0.3) - (0.3)
Total - (28.0) - (28.0)
aluation Total as at
technique (s)

EUR million and key input (s) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 31 Dec 2013
Commodity contracts — faj uethed a - 9.1 - 9.1
Commodity contracts — ges a - 4.8 - 4.8
Foreign exchang —Reld for trading b - 115 - 115
Embedded derivati c - 1.2 - 1.2
Total - 26.6 - 26.6
Commo racts — fair value hedges a - (14.4) - (14.4)
Faoseign'exchamge contracts — held for trading b - (6.0) - (6.0)
E derivative c - (4.3) - (4.3)
Total - (24.7) - (24.7)

For level 2 fair value measurements, fair values are determined based on the underlying notional amount and the associated

observable forward prices/rates in active markets. The key inputs in these valuations are as follows (with reference to the

tables above):
a) forward commodity prices in active market
b) forward exchange rates in active market

c) forward electricity prices in active market
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35. Capital commitments

The value of commitments for acquisition of plant and equipment contracted for but not recognised as liabilities at the
reporting date are set out in the table below.

EUR million 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013
Within one year 116.8 14.2
Between one and five years 1.0 -

More than five years - -
Total 117.8 \ 2

36. Operating leases

The value of commitments in relation to operating leases contracted for but not recognis ilities*at the reporting date

are set out in the table below.

EUR million 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013
Within one year 4.6 4.7
Between one and five years 10.9 12.1
More than five years 0.9 2.6
Total 16.4 194

37. Contingencies §

Legal actions

No environmental incidents with materi nsequences occurred in 2014. Regulatory processes associated with

actual and alleged non-compliang ironmental regulations were, however, initiated at Nyrstar's Peruvian
operations. While the outcomes % eedings are currently unknown, the potential for site-specific consequences of a
significant nature cannot be e . Thefproceedings include:

ority (ANA) initiated sanction processes related to instances of non-compliance with
in the site’s effluent permit. Engineering solutions to return the site to compliance are

At Contonga, the Natiopal
water discharge li )
being develop allel with efforts to modify the permitted effluent discharge limits. Penalties allowed for under

Peruvian legislaii e fines or withdrawal of the permit; however on the basis of the actions currently being taken
Nyrstar's that material regulatory penalties are unlikely to be incurred.
At icapcha)) the environmental regulator (OEFA) initiated a sanction process related to alleged instances of non-
co identified during an inspection in April 2013. Nyrstar has filed a legal defence contesting OEFA’s findings and
Nyrst ssessment is that material regulatory penalties are unlikely to be incurred.

Addition to the above Nyrstar is the subject of a number of claims and legal proceedings incidental to the normal conduct of
its business. Management does not believe that such claims and proceedings are likely, on aggregate, to have a material
adverse effect on the financial condition of Nyrstar.
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38. Related parties

(a) Transactions with related parties

No transactions with related parties occurred in the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.
(b) Key management compensation

Board of directors

EUR million 2014 2013
?\;305

Salaries and other compensation 0.5
Nyrstar Management Committee %

DN
EUR million 2014 2013
Salaries and other compensation 7.0 6.5
Pension benefits 0.6 0.7
Share based payments 25 2.6
Share based payments reflect the cost to the Group related to share b s granted to the members of the NMC.
These costs do not represent actual monetary or non-monetary bengfits rece y the members of the NMC.

During the period, the auditor received fees for audit ed services provided to the Group as follows:

39. Audit and non-audit services by the Company’; st% ditor
a

EUR thousand 2014 2013

Audit services D 92.0 102.0
Audit related services 228.9 35.6
Tax services 20.4 61.5
Total Deloitte Bedrijfsrevis 341.3 199.1

% 879.7 824.4

Audit services

Audit related servij - 35.1
Tax services 73.9 69.2
Non-audit i - -
Total ot es he Deloitte network 953.6 928.7
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40. Group entities
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The holding company and major subsidiaries included in the Group’s consolidated financial statements are:

Belgian company Country of Ownership Ownership
Entity number incorporation 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013
Nyrstar NV RPR 0888.728.945 Belgium Holding entity Holding entity
Nyrstar Australia Pty Ltd Australia 100% 100%
Nyrstar Hobart Pty Ltd Australia 100% 100%
Nyrstar Port Pirie Pty Ltd Australia 100%
Nyrstar Trading GmbH Austria 100%
Nyrstar Resources (Barbados) Ltd Barbados 100%
Nyrstar Belgium NV RPR 0865.131.221 Belgium 100%
Nyrstar Finance International NV RPR 0889.716.167 Belgium 100%
Nyrstar Sales & Marketing NV RPR 0811.219.314 Belgium 100%
Breakwater Resources Ltd Canada 100%
Canzinco Ltd Canada 100%
Nyrstar Mining Ltd Canada 100%
Nyrstar Canada (Holdings) Ltd Canada 100%
Nyrstar Myra Falls Ltd Canada 100%
Sociedad Contractual Minera El Toqui Chile 100% 100%
GM-Metal SAS Fra 100% 100%
Nyrstar France SAS n 100% 100%
Nyrstar France Trading SAS F 100% 100%
Nyrstar Germany GmbH Gerntany 100% 100%
Nyrstar Hoyanger AS rway 100% 100%
American Pacific Honduras SA de CV onduras 100% 100%
Servicios de Logistica de Centroamerica SA de CV Honduras 100% 100%
Nyrstar Campo Morado SA de CV Mexico 100% 100%
Nyrtrade Mexico SA de CV Mexico 100% -
Nyrstar Budel BV The Netherlands 100% 100%
Nyrstar International BV The Netherlands 100% 100%
Nyrstar Netherlands (Holdings) BV The Netherlands 100% 100%
Nyrstar Coricancha S.A. Peru 100% 100%
Nyrstar Ancash S.A. Peru 100% 100%
Nyrstar Peru S.A. Peru 100% 100%
Nytrade Peri SA Peru 100% -
Nyrstar Spain & Portugal S.L. Spain 100% 100%
Nyrstar Finance International Switzerland 100% 100%
Nyrstar Sales & Marketj Switzerland 100% 100%
Breakwater Tunisia Tunisia 100% 100%
Nyrstar Clarksvilleédnc United States 100% 100%
Nyrstar Holdi United States 100% 100%
Nyrstar ID United States 100% 100%
Nyrstarglenn ines - Gordonsville LLC United States 100% 100%
Ny ess@e Mines - Strawberry Plains LLC United States 100% 100%
Ny United States 100% 100%
Nyrstar,US#Trading Inc United States 100% 100%

41. Subsequent events

There have been no material reportable events subsequent to 31 December 2014.
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To the shareholders

As required by law, we report to you in the context of our appointment as the company’s statutory auditor. ThiS\cepo,

includes our report on the consolidated financial statements together with our report on other legal and r
O
1

requirements. These consolidated financial statements comprise the consolidated statement of financij as at
31 December 2014, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensiveslo esconsolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, as wi the

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Report on the consolidated financial statements — Unqualified opimi ()

)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Nyrstar NV (“the ¢
group”), prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Stan
with the legal and regulatory requirements applicable in Belgium. The ¢
total assets of 3,783.8 million EUR and the consolidated income stategent
year then ended of 89.8 million EUR.

Board of directors’ responsibility for the preparation of the conSplidated financial statements

its subsidiaries (jointly “the
ted by the European Union and
i atement of financial position shows
a‘tonsolidated loss (group share) for the

m >
S

The board of directors is responsible for the preparation and Tair pre tion of consolidated financial statements in

ternal control as the board of directors determines is
ements that are free from material misstatement, whether

and regulatory requirements applicable in Belgium,
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated f
due to fraud or error.

Statutory auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opini onsolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Internatiogal Ste n Auditing (ISA). Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perf; ( t0 obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial

An audit involves perfor es to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. s selected depend on the statutory auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material mi e consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, thefstat uditor considers internal control relevant to the group’s preparation and fair presentation of the

consolidated st ents in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
presSsiftg an opinion on the effectiveness of the group’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating

as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We have obtained from the
and the board of directors the explanations and information necessary for performing our audit.
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Ungqualified opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements of Nyrstar NV give a true and fair view of the group’s net equity and
financial position as of 31 December 2014, and of its results and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and with the legal and regulatory requirements
applicable in Belgium.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements which describes the uncertainty related to the
recoverability of the company’s 249.8 million EUR zinc purchase interest with Talvivaara Mining Company plc. Qur
opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

The board of directors is responsible for the preparation and the content of the directors’ report qu the comisolidated

financial statements.

As part of our mandate and in accordance with the Belgian standard complementary to th ional Standards on

Auditing applicable in Belgium, our responsibility is to verify, in all material respects, comgplian ith certain legal and
regulatory requirements. On this basis, we make the following additional statement s got modify the scope of
our opinion on the consolidated financial statements:

equired by law, is consistent
s with the information that we became

e The directors’ report on the consolidated financial statements includes thepinf
with the consolidated financial statements and is free from material ingons
aware of during the performance of our mandate.

Diegem, 4 February-2015

The statutory auditor %

( /-~ !’
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Represented by Gert Vanhees
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